
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 
ENVIRONMENT, REGENERATION AND STREETSCENE SERVICES 

CABINET BOARD 
 

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING ENVIRONMENT, REGENERATION AND 
STREETSCENE SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
FRIDAY 20th JANUARY 2023 

 
MULTI-LOCATION MEETING – COUNCIL CHAMBER PORT TALBOT 

AND MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
ALL MOBILE TELEPHONES TO BE SWITCHED TO SILENT FOR THE 

DURATION OF THE MEETING 
 

Webcasting/Hybrid Meetings: 
This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 

Council’s Internet Site.  By participating you are consenting to be filmed 
and the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 

webcasting and/or training purposes. 
 
 

Part 1 
 

1.  Appointment of Chairperson   
 

2.  Chairpersons Announcement/s   
 

3.  Declarations of Interest   
 

4.  Minutes of Previous Meeting  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

5.  Forward Work Programme  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

6.  Public Question Time   
Questions must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services, 
democratic.services@npt.gov.uk no later than noon on the working 

mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk


day prior to the meeting. Questions must relate to items on the 
agenda. Questions will be dealt with in a 10 minute period. 
 
For Decision: 
 

7.  Proposed Modification Order for byway No.24 in the Community of 
Cilybebyll  (Pages 17 - 40) 
 

8.  A48 Margam Road to Port Talbot (Revocation) and (30MPH Speed 
Limits) - Order 2022  (Pages 41 - 56) 
 

9.  Traffic Calming Measures at B4434 New Road, Clyne - Notice 2022  
(Pages 57 - 70) 
 

10.  B4287 Cimla Road, Cimla, Neath (30 MPH Speed Limit) - Order 
2022  (Pages 71 - 84) 
 

11.  List of Approved Contractors  (Pages 85 - 98) 
 
For Information: 
 

12.  Audit Wales National Study - Net Zero Decarbonisation Baseline 
Review  (Pages 99 - 104) 
 

13.  Urgent Items   
Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the 
Chairperson pursuant to Statutory Instrument 2001 No. 2290 (as 
amended). 
 

14.  Access to Meetings - Exclusion of the Public  (Pages 105 - 110) 
To resolve to exclude the public for the following items pursuant to 
Regulation 4 (3) and (5) of Statutory Instrument 2001 No. 2290 and 
the relevant exempt paragraphs of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972. 
 
Part 2 
 
For Information: 
 

15.  The Transfer of Land and Construction of a Commercial Unit at 
Burrows Yard - Update (Exempt under Paragraph 14)  (Pages 111 - 
114) 
 



 
K.Jones 

Chief Executive 
 

Civic Centre 
Port Talbot Friday, 13 January 2023 
 
 
 
Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services Cabinet Board 
Members:  
 
Councillors. W.F.Griffiths, S.Jones and D.M.Peters 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 

21222 

 
EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD 

 
2 DECEMBER 2022 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT, REGENERATION AND STREETSCENE SERVICES 
CABINET BOARD 

 
 

 
 
Cabinet Members: 
 
Councillors: 
 

W.F.Griffiths, S.Jones (Chair) and D.M.Peters 
 

Officers in Attendance: 
 
S.Brennan, D.Griffiths, M.Roberts, N.Jones, C.John, S.Cook, N.Bulcraig, 
N.Chapple, H.Hasan, J.Smith and C.Morris 

 
 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON  

 
Agreed that Councillor S.Jones be appointed as Chairperson for the 
meeting. 

 
2. CHAIRPERSONS ANNOUNCEMENT/S  

 
The Chairperson welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
There were no declarations of interests received. 

 
4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
That the minutes of the meetings held on 6 October 2022 and 28 
October 2022, be approved as accurate records.  
 

5. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



- 2 - 
 

21222 

That the Forward Work Programme be noted. 
 

6. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 
No questions were received. 
 

7. GODRE'R GRAIG SCHOOL SCHEME  
 
Members noted the amended Integrated Impact Assessment. 
 
Decision: 
 
Having due regard to the Integrated Impact Screening Assessment: 
 
That Option 3 be implemented to manage the risk and improve the local 
environment, with the cost to be funded from the Council’s Corporate 
Contingency Reserve, or via any future Welsh Government funding that 
becomes available. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To manage the risks and liabilities associated with spoil tip debris flow at 
the site, as this is the only affordable solution available to the council. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 
 

8. ADDITIONAL WORKS PROGRAMME  
 
Decisions: 
 
Having due regard to the Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 

 That the programme of expenditure, as set out in Appendix A of the 
circulated report, be approved for completion over the next 18 
months 

 That the Director of Environment and Regeneration be granted 
delegated authority, in consultation with the relevant cabinet 
member, to undertake procurements and/or draw up and 
implement associated prioritised needs based programmes. 

 
Reason for Decision: 

Page 6



- 3 - 
 

21222 

 
To provide equipment for service delivery and maintain assets for which 
the Council is responsible, in order to help address community concerns 
in relation to the urban realm. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 
 

9. HEALTHY TRAVEL CHARTER  
 
Decision: 
 
Having had due regard to the Integrated Impact Assessment, it be 
approved that the Council become a signatory of The Swansea Bay 
Healthy Travel Charter. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The charter seeks to reduce the impact on the local environment by 
reducing the use and reliance of internal combustion engines; seek to 
make staff more active (in line with Welsh Assembly Active Travel Act) to 
reduce inactivity, obesity and boost their well-being. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 

 
10. CHRISTMAS PARKING 2022  

 
Decision: 
 
Having due regard to the integrated impact screening assessment: 
 
That free Christmas parking be approved in Neath, Port Talbot and 
Pontardawe Pay & Display car parks from Saturday 10th December 
2022 to Sunday 1st January 2023 inclusive (excluding The Gnoll, Afan 
Forest Country Park and Aberavon Seafront car parks). 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 

Page 7



- 4 - 
 

21222 

To support the town centre economy, it is acknowledged that providing 
free Christmas car parking would further support their recovery. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 
 

11. EXTINGUISHMENT OF PART OF FOOTPATH NO.21 - CILLYBEBYLL  
 
Decision: 
 
Having due regard to the Integrated Impact Screening Assessment, that 
a public path extinguishment order be made pursuant to section 118 of 
the Highways Act 1980 for the route shown A-B on the attached plan of 
the circulated report, and if no objections are made to confirm the order 
as made. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 

 That this length of path is not needed for public use given there is a 
suitable alternative via the path A-C which joins the footway 
alongside Graig road which connects to point C. 

 That the original length of the path A-B is no longer available and in 
any event the gradient of the bank from the houses to the rear of 
the cul de sac up to point B is steeper than via the footway up to 
point C.  

 There is no suitable alternative today to the length A-B. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 
 

12. EXTINGUISHMENT ORDERS FOR PART OF FOOTPATH NO.38 - 
CILLYBEBYLL  
 
Decision: 
 
Having due regard to the integrated impact screening assessment, an 
Extinguishment Order is made pursuant to Section 118 of the Highways 
Act 1980 in respect of the route shown C-C1- D shown on the attached 
plan in the circulated report, and if no objections are received to the 
order then this order be confirmed the same as unopposed. 

Page 8



- 5 - 
 

21222 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 

 There is a need to resolve the issue of this length of path which 
crosses over two gardens. 

 The housing development has resulted in the loss of the original 
field path, but that access across the site from Neath Road to 
public footpath no.39 can still be obtained mainly via the estate 
roads. 

 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 
 

13. DIVERSION OF FOOTPATH NO.14 - CWMAVON  
 
Decision: 
 
That having due regard to the Integrated Impact Screening Assessment 
that a public path Diversion Order is made pursuant to Section 119 of the 
Highways Act 1980 in respect of the route shown A-B-C-D to A-E-D 
shown on plan no.1 in the circulated report, and that if no objections are 
received then to confirm the order as made. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
That the grounds for making the order under the tests of expediency can 
be satisfied as it will improve the privacy of the residents who live in 
close proximity to the path and that the diversion does not have any 
significant effect on the enjoyment of the path as a whole. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 
 

14. COMMERCIAL PROPERTY GRANT - 5 THE ROPEWALK, NEATH  
 
Decision: 
 
Having given due regard to the Integrated Impact Assessment and a 
description of the recommendation, that the grant be approved. 
 

Page 9



- 6 - 
 

21222 

Reason for Decision: 
 
To implement the provisions of the Commercial Property Grant scheme 
in accordance with the criteria and terms of administration of the grant, in 
order to contribute to the regeneration of Neath Town Centre. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 

 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 

 
15. SIDING TERRACE, LONLAS, SKEWEN (REVOCATION) AND 

PROHIBITION OF WAITING, LOADING OR UNLOADING AT ANY 
TIME, PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT ANY TIME AND RESIDENT 
PERMIT HOLDERS ONLY - TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER 2022  
 
Decisions: 
 
Having had due regard to the integrated impact assessment: 

 That the objections are upheld to the Siding Terrace, Lonlas, 
Skewen – (Revocation) and (Prohibition of Waiting At Any Time, 
Prohibition of Waiting, Loading and Unloading At Any Time and 
Resident Permit Holders Only) (as detailed in Appendix A to the 
circulated report) and that the revised scheme (as detailed in 
Appendix B to the circulated report) be implemented on site. 

 That the objectors are to be informed of the decision accordingly. 
 
Reason for Decisions: 

 
To improve the existing resident parking scheme. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 

 
16. LIST OF APPROVED CONTRACTORS  

 
Decision: 
 
Having had due regard to the Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 

Page 10



- 7 - 
 

21222 

That the List of Approved Contractors is amended as follows:-  
 
Companies to be added to the List of Approved Contractors 

 
The following companies have applied to be included on the list and 
have passed the required assessments: 
 

Company  Category  
 

Newport Recycling Ltd 
(N017) 

6 

Gavin Griffiths Recycling 
Ltd (G036) 

6,7,111 

Probe Industries Ltd 
(P054) 

111 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 

 To keep the List of Approved Contractors up to date and as far as 
possible, ensure a competitive procurement process.  

 These recommendations to be adopted for the purpose of 
supplying a List of Approved Contractors for invitation to tender 
within the relevant category. 

 
Implementation of Decision: 

 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 
 

17. QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE  
 
Decision: 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

18. URGENT ITEMS  
 
There were no urgent items received. 

 
19. ACCESS TO MEETINGS - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

 
Decision:  
 

Page 11



- 8 - 
 

21222 

That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as set out in Paragraph 14 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007 
subject to the Public Interest Test (where appropriate) being applied. 

 
20. LEASE OF UNIT 1 - NEATH TOWN CENTRE DEVELOPMENT 

(EXEMPT UNDER PARAGRAPH 14)  
 
Decision: 
 
Having had due regard to the first stage Integrated Impact Assessment, 
that the granting of the lease on the terms set out in the circulated report 
be approved. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The grant of the lease will allow this prominently located vacant premises 
to be let and operated by a major leisure sector company and provide an 
annual income for the Council. 
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period, which 
ended at 9am, Tuesday 6 December 2022. 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

Page 12



1 
 
  

 

 

Executive 

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

 

2022 - 2023  

 
 

  

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5



2 
 

Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services Cabinet Board 

Immediately following the Scrutiny Committee at 2pm 

Meeting Date 
 

Agenda Item and TYPE Contact Officer 

3 March Traffic Regulation Orders (Various) 
FOR DECISION 
 

Dave Griffiths 
 

Select Lists (Various)  
FOR DECISION 
 

Dave Griffiths 

Quarter 3 Performance 
FOR MONITORING 
 

Shaun Davies 

Highways and Engineering Works Programme 
2023/2024 
FOR DECISION 
 

Mike Roberts 

Local Energy Plan 
FOR DECISION 
 

Simon Brennan 

Fleet Renewals Programme 2024/25 
FOR DECISION 
 

Dave Griffiths / Kevin Lewis 

Faith Provision within Council run Cemeteries 
(Moved from 20 January meeting) 
FOR DECISION 
 

Mike Roberts 

Memorial Safety Testing Policy  
FOR DECISION 

Mike Roberts  

 

P
age 14



3 
 

Meeting Date 
 

Agenda Item and TYPE Contact Officer 

14th April Traffic Regulation Orders (Various) 
FOR DECISION 
 

Dave Griffiths 
 

Select Lists (Various)  
FOR DECISION 
 

Dave Griffiths 

Highways Asset Management Plan Update 
FOR DECISION 
 

Mike Roberts 

Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy 
FOR INFORMATION 

Simon Brennan/ 
Ceri Morris 

Waste Strategy Report 
FOR DECISION 
 

Mike Roberts 

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

P
age 15



4 
 

Meeting Date 
 

Agenda Item and TYPE Contact Officer 

26th May Traffic Regulation Orders (Various) – 
FOR DECISION 
 

Dave Griffiths 
 

Select Lists (Various) – 
FOR DECISION 
 

Dave Griffiths 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

P
age 16



 

   

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

ENVIRONMENT, REGENERATION & STREETSCENE 
SERVICES CABINET BOARD 

 

19th January 2023 

                

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Craig Griffiths 

 

Matter for Decision 

Wards Affected:  

Alt-wen 

Proposed modification order for byway No.24 in the 
Community of Cilybebyll 

Purpose of the Report  

1. To determine whether to make a modification order to downgrade a part 
of byway no.24, to a public footpath.  

 Executive Summary 

2. This report considers the grounds for making a modification order to 
downgrade part of a byway to a public footpath.   

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

   

3. A byway open to all traffic gives the public the right to drive vehicles along 
such a designated track, however a section of byway no.24 is not 
considered suitable for vehicular traffic, in that it is insufficient in width 
and includes a set of steps.   

4. The proposal is to make a modification order, which will downgrade a part 
of the byway to a public footpath. 

Background  

5. Byway no.24 is shown in the Definitive Map and Statement as 
commencing on a cul-de-sac off Alltwen Hill and proceeding along a road 
to the side of Alltwen Primary School, before passing along a set of steps.  
The plan at appendix 2 shows the byway starting at point C and ending at 
point B; the set of steps is shown at points A - B. 

6. A public byway open to all traffic gives the public right to drive vehicles 
along such a designated track.  Given it is not possible to take a vehicle 
up a set of steps, it is necessary to consider either re-classifying this 
section of the byway under the Highways Act 1980 or assessing whether 
the byway was incorrectly recorded.  It is considered that the byway may 
have been incorrectly recorded, when the review of all public paths was 
undertaken as a result of the National Parks and Access to the 
Countryside Act 1949. If it is concluded that this happened, a modification 
order could be made under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to 
correct that error. 

Grounds for modification    

7. The path appears on the 1918 and 1942 editions of the Ordnance Survey 
as a track to Dyffryn Road. It is not possible to say from the map whether 
vehicles could have obtained access along its entire length, but there is 
no reason to presume the steep gradient which now contains the steps, 
was different to the present time. It is also not known precisely when the 
steps were created 

8. The two Ordnance Survey editions depict a slightly wider track compared 
to the subsequent editions, although this may be on account of the small 
scale of the plans - 1:10000.  Today, the section containing the steps, 
only measures between 1 and 1.5 metres wide. 

Page 18



 

   

9. The steps are first shown on the Ordnance Survey 1964 edition, although 
a local resident has indicated that her mother believes the steps have 
been in existence since approximately the 1950’s. 

10. The Parish Council surveyed the path in 1950 and noted a stile at point B 
where the path meets Dyffryn Road. This stile is written on the plan used 
to survey this path, which indicates that no vehicles could have accessed 
Dyffryn Road by at least this date.  

11. The path was shown in the first draft map of 1955, the Provisional Map of 
1964 and the first Definitive map of 1970, as a public footpath. It was only 
at the Draft Special Review in 1971 ("the 1971 review"), that the path was 
upgraded to a byway. It is possible the intention was to recognise public 
vehicular access to the school and to those properties towards point A, 
but for some reason the flight of steps was also included in this 
upgrading.  

12. The 1971 review was primarily intended to re-classify any roads used as 
public paths into either byways, bridleways or footpaths.  It appears 
therefore, that the 1971 review was used as an opportunity to re-
designate the footpath.  Evidently, vehicular access to schools and 
individual properties would normally be secured as public roads via 
adoption agreements and then added to the list of streets. The 1971 
review was never intended to be used for this purpose, which suggests 
that its re-classification was never dealt with properly and consequently 
resulted in this mistake.  

13. Curiously the section which can be driven by vehicles is quoted in the 
Definitive Map as having a width of 3 feet, whereas there is a minimum 
width of 4 metres for the length between points A-C.  This also suggests 
there was some confusion at the time as to the status of this path.  It is 
suggested that this error in the Definitive Map and Statement is also 
corrected.   

14. Several appendices attached to this report contain information om the 
evidence that the Council must consider when determining whether to 
make a modification order. 

15. Appendix 3 provides an extract from the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981, which places an obligation on this Council to consider what 
evidence may exist for re-classifying this path in whole or in part. 

Page 19



 

   

Appendix 4 provides further information on the grounds that need to be 
considered, should the Definitive Map be amended on an evidential basis.    

Appendix 5 summarises the history of the compilation of the Definitive 
Map and Statement as required by the National Parks and Access to the 
Countryside Act 1949. 

Financial Impacts  

16. There are no financial implications associated with this report. 

Integrated Impact Assessment   

17. A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the 
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, 
the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulation 2015, the Well Being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 
2016. The first stage assessment has indicated that a more in-depth 
assessment is not required. 

Valleys Communities Impacts  

18. There are no valley community impacts associated with this report. 

Workforce Impacts 

19. There are no workforce impacts associated with this report. 

Legal Impacts 

20. The recommendations are discharging a duty under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 to correct any errors that are discovered in the 
Definitive Map and Statement. 

Risk Management Impacts 

21. There are no risk management implications from this report. 

Page 20



 

   

Consultation 

22. Prior to this report a standard list of organisations were consulted such as 
the Ramblers Association, their local representative, the Byways and 
Bridleways Trust, the Community Council and the Local Member. 

Recommendations  

23. It is recommended that having due regard to the Integrated Impact 
Screening Assessment  

 That a modification order be made under Section 53 Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 to downgrade the length of Byway no.24, shown 
on the attached plan between points A and B, to a public footpath.  If 
no objections are received to the order then this order be confirmed as 
unopposed.  

 That the Definitive Map and Statement be amended to reflect the 
width from 3 feet to 4 metres between points A and C.  

Reasons for Proposed Decision  

24. That taking into consideration the available historical evidence set out in 
the report, there are sufficient grounds to alter the designation of the 
section of public Byway No.24 shown A-B on the attached plan. 

Implementation of Decision 

25. The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period. 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



 

   

Appendices  

26. Appendix 1- Integrated Impact Screening Assessment 

27. Appendix 2 - Location Plan 

28. Appendix 3 - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

29. Appendix 4 - Grounds for altering the Definitive Map 

30. Appendix 5 - History of the compilation of the Definitive Map and 
Statement  
       

List of Background Papers 

31. None. 

Officer Contact   

32. Neil Chapple 
Legal Regulatory Services Manager 
Email: n.chapple@npt.gov.uk 
Tel: 01639 763050 

Page 22

mailto:n.chapple@npt.gov.uk


 
  

Appendix 1 
 

Impact Assessment - First Stage  
 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: To assess and evaluate the proposal to downgrade part of Byway 
No.24 in the Community of Cilybebyll.  

Service Area: Legal and Democratic Services 

Directorate: Chief Executives  

 
2. Does the initiative affect:   
 

 Yes No 

Service users x  

Staff  x 

Wider community x  

Internal administrative process only  x  

 
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including 
evidence)/How might it impact? 

Age   x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

P
age 23



  Disability   x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

Gender Reassignment  x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

Marriage/Civil Partnership  x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

Pregnancy/Maternity  x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

Race  x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

Religion/Belief  x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

Sex  x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

Sexual orientation  x    The effect of the proposed order would be 
to regularise the designation of the fight of 
steps as a public footpath only. It has no 
impact of this protected characteristic. 

 

 

P
age 24



 

4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including 
evidence used) / How might it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language  

 x    The proposal does not affect the ability for using 
the Welsh Language as it relates to access 
rights 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English  

 x    The proposal does not affect the ability for using 
the Welsh Language as it relates to access 
rights    

 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including 
evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity  

 x  
  The proposal has no effect on biodiversity given 

it is concerned with downgrading  the legal 
status of a public path  

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 
the wider environment, 
such as air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc.  

 x  

  

The proposal has no effect on biodiversity given 
it is concerned with downgrading the legal status 
of a public path. 

 

 

 

P
age 25



 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 

 

 

 

 

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people  

x  The initiative supports the long term wellbeing of people by 
ensuring that public path orders are correctly introduced and 
implemented only when they can be justified and that 
resources are appropriately used in the provision of legal 
services to the Council and therefore the wider community.  

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives  

x  The initiative will further allow the focusing of existing human 
and financial resources upon the 3 wellbeing objectives by 
ensuring that public path orders are correctly introduced and 
implemented only when they can be justified and that 
resources are appropriately used in assessing and evaluating 
them. 

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative  

x  The initiative builds upon the consultation and evidence 
gathering with all the stakeholders concerned, before coming 
to a recommendation. 

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions 

x  This Authority has ensured all those who have an interest in 
this initiative have been given an opportunity to provide their 
views and any evidence they considered relevant. 

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse  

x  This initiative will reconcile the error in the classification of the 
path inherited by this Council. 

P
age 26



 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate): 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required  X 

Reasons for this conclusion    

Based upon the above assessment a second stage impact assessment is not required as the initiative does 
not negatively impact on any of the protected characteristics, or the Welsh Language, or biodiversity and 
embraces the sustainable development principle. The report is resolving an error in the Definitive Map.  

 

 

 

 
 

  Name Position Date 

Completed by Neil Chapple 
Legal Regulatory Services 
Manager 

10/01/23 

Signed off by  Craig Griffiths 
Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services  

10/01/23 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Existing Byway
 Proposed Downgrading 
 Scale 1:1000
 Grid Ref: 27269 20361 - 27271 20359
 Crown Copyright and Database Right 2021
 Ordnance Survey 100023392

Proposed Downgrading of Byway 24 (Part)
Cilybebyll to a Footpath

BW24

C

A

B

Appendix 2

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
 

WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT, 1981 
 

Section 53 Duty to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under continuous 

review. 

 

(2) As regards every Definitive Map and Statement, the Surveying 

Authority shall: 

 

(a) as soon as reasonably practical after commencement date, by 

order make such modifications to the map and statement as 

appear to them to be requisite in consequence of the 

occurrence, before that date, of any of the events specified in 

Sub-Section 3; and 

 

(b) as from that date, keep the map and statement under 

continuous review and as soon as reasonably practicable after 

the occurrence on or after that date, of any of those events, by 

order make such modifications to the map and statement as 

appear to them to be requisite in consequence of the occurrence 

of that event. 

 

(3) The events referred to in Sub-Section 2 are as follows: 

 

(b) the expiration, in relation to anyway in the area to which the map 

relates of any period such that the enjoyment by the public of 

the way during that period rises a presumption that the way has 

been dedicated as a public path or restricted byway; 

 

(c) the discovery by the Authority of evidence which (when 

considered with all other relevant evidence available to them) 

shows:  

 

Page 31



(i) that a right of way which is not shown on the map and 

statement subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist 

over land in the area to which the map relates, being a 

right of way such that the land over which the right 

subsists is a public path, a restricted byway or, subject to 

Section 54A a byway open to all traffic; 

 

(ii) that a highway shown in the map and statement as a 

highway of a particular description ought to be there 

shown as a highway of a different description; 

 

(iii) that there is no public right of way over land shown in the 

map and statement as a highway of any description or 

any other particulars contained in the map and statement 

require modification.  

 

   

  HIGHWAYS ACT, 1980 

  

 Section 31.  Dedication of way as a highway presumed after public 

use for 20 years. 

  

 Where a public way over land, other than a way of such a character 

that use of it by the public could not give rise at common law to any 

presumption of dedication, has actually been enjoyed by the public 

as of right and without interruption of a full period of 20 years, the 

way is deemed to have been dedicated as a highway unless there is 

sufficient evidence that there was no intention during this period to 

dedicate it. 

  

 For Section 31(1) Highways Act, 1981 to operate and give rise to a 

presumption of dedication the following criteria must be satisfied: 

  

Page 32



 - the physical nature of the path must be such as is capable of 

being a public right of way 

 - the use must be ‘bought into question’, i.e. challenged or disputed 

in some way 

 - use must have taken place without interruption over the period of 

twenty years before the date on which the right is brought into 

question 

 - use must be as of right i.e. without force, without stealth or without 

permission and in the belief that the route was public 

 - there must be insufficient evidence that the landowner did not 

intend to dedicate a right of type being claimed  

 - use must be by the public at large 

 
 
 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



L: Rights of Way/Appendix - The basis upon which a Modification Order may be made  

APPENDIX No 4 

 

THE BASIS UPON WHICH A MODIFICATION ORDER MAY BE MADE TO 

MODIFY OR DELETE A PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY  

 

1. This Council must be satisfied that the existing entry in the Definitive 

Map and Statement is incorrect.  This means that the evidence should 

show a mistake was made at the relevant date of the First Definitive 

Map, which in this case is 14th September 1954. 

 

2. The provisions of Section 32(4)(b) to the National Parks and Access to 

the Countryside Act 1949 required the Authority to produce a Definitive 

Map and Statement. Section 56(1)(b) and (d) of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 provides that, “the Definitive Map and Statement 

shall be conclusive evidence as to the particulars contained therein to 

the following extent, where the map shows a footpath the map should 

be conclusive evidence that there was at the relevant date a highway 

as shown on the map…”.  So if a challenge is being made to an entry 

to the Map and Statement the evidence must show a mistake was 

made at the earliest relevant date which is the first date the path was 

recognised as having legal status. 

 

3. The question therefore is what is considered sufficient evidence to 

show that such a mistake had been made.  The 1981 Act permits a 

correction to be made when evidence is discovered and considered 

with all other relevant evidence and so a decision has to be made on 

the balance of probabilities that an error had been made. 

 

4. The real difficulty lies when the evidence upon which the entries were 

made into the Definitive Map have been lost or that record is 

incomplete.  This is a common predicament that this and other 

Authorities face, as once the procedure for finally showing a public right 

of way has been completed the conclusivity of the Map and Statement 

would have led many Authorities to be less concerned on retaining the 

Page 35



L: Rights of Way/Appendix - The basis upon which a Modification Order may be made  

reasons for its final inclusion.  Nonetheless as a result of previous case 

concerning R -v- S for Environment ex parte Simms and Burrows 

(1990), such deletions, or downgrading and other amendments are 

deemed possible. 

 

5. The issue therefore is what weight is to be given to the entry into the 

original map especially when the evidence which led to its inclusion is 

absent.  It was a document prepared pursuant to an Act of Parliament 

and which was to be an authoritative record, it required various stages 

leading up to its preparation to be satisfied and gave landowners 

several opportunities to challenge any proposed entry.  It should also 

be borne in mind that the map was prepared at a time when one could 

find local people whose memories went back very much further than 

today’s residents. 

 

6. This issue was addressed at the Court of Appeal concerning the case 

of Trevelyan -v- Secretary of State for the Environment (2000).  It 

concluded there must be an initial presumption in favour of the 

existence of that public right of way and unless there is evidence to the 

contrary, it should be assumed the proper procedures were followed 

and that evidence did exist which made it seriously arguable that the 

right subsisted at the relevant date, even if no trace of that evidence 

survives. 

 

7.   Two earlier   Welsh Office Circulars assist , that numbered  45/90 on 

‘Modifications to the Definitive Map’, advises that: ‘in making an 

application for an order to delete…a right of way, it will be for those 

who contend that there is no right of way…, to prove that the map is in 

error by the discovery of evidence, which when considered with all 

other relevant evidence clearly shows that a mistake was made when 

the right of way was first recorded. …it is not for the authority to 

demonstrate that the map is correct, but for the applicant to show that 

an error was made.’ 

 

Page 36



L: Rights of Way/Appendix - The basis upon which a Modification Order may be made  

8. The second Welsh Office Circular 5/93 on ‘Public Rights of Way’ states 

that: ‘Surveying authorities, whenever they discover or are presented 

with evidence which suggests that a definitive map and statement 

should be modified, are required to take into consideration all other 

relevant evidence available to them concerning the status of the right of 

way involved. Moreover, before making an order they must be satisfied 

that the evidence shows on the balance of probability that a right of 

way….shown on the map is not in fact a public right of way. The mere 

assertion, without supporting evidence, that a right of way does not 

exist would be insufficient to satisfy that test.’ 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5 

 

HISTORY OF THE COMPILATION OF THE DEFINITIVE MAP  

AND STATEMENT  

 

1. The National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act of 1949 placed 

an obligation on all Councils to produce a Definitive Map and 

Statement.  Parish Councils were given the task of surveying all routes 

they considered may have legal status.  This resulted in the production 

of what has come to be known as the Parish Map (at the scale of 6” to 

one mile) and the all too often rather brief description of the path 

contained on small cards also known as the Parish Card.  Some of the 

descriptions on these cards were more comprehensive than others but 

in combination with the paths’ depiction in the “Parish Map”, provide a 

useful record of what routes were considered to have public path status 

by 1954.    

 

2. The information was passed to the former Glamorgan County Council 

who collated the information and produced the first Draft Definitive Map 

which in their opinion reflected routes considered to be public rights of 

way on 14th September 1954 which became the “relevant date” of the 

first Definitive Map published in 1970.   

 

3. The legislation required that the information gathered should be the 

subject of a series of reviews, which would allow the public and 

landowners to make representations or objections to the inclusion or 

absence of routes in the various editions of these earlier Draft Maps.     

The result was the production of the initial Draft Map and Statement 

published in 1955.  Objections to the inclusion or omission of routes 

were considered in 1956 and the results of those decisions were again 

subject to further objections which resulted in a further series of 

hearings which took place in the 1960s.  The Provisional Map and 

Statement published in 1964 was the effect of those objections so 

determined. Once published, landowners were given another 

Page 39



opportunity to object and these were heard in the Quarter Sessions in 

around 1968.  The result was the production of the first Definitive Map 

and Statement published in 1970.  The passing of the Countryside Act 

1968 required  all Councils to reclassify routes they had designated as 

roads used as public paths (R.U.U.Ps) into either footpaths, bridleways 

or byways open to all traffic.  This resulted in the production of the Draft 

Special Review of 1971, published in 1974, to which objections could 

be made.  Those inquiries were mainly held in 1980 which when 

determined lead to the production of the current Definitive Map and 

Statement published in 1988.   

 

Page 40



  

 
 
 
 

 
 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Environment, Regeneration & Streetscene Services  
Cabinet Board 

 
20th January 2023 

 

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport – D.W.Griffiths 
 
Matter for Decision 
 
Wards Affected: Margam and Tai-bach, Port Talbot 
 
A48 MARGAM ROAD TO PORT TALBOT (REVOCATION)  
AND (30MPH SPEED LIMITS) - ORDER 2022 
 
Purpose of the Report: 
 
To consider the comments and objections received following for the 
advertisement of the A48 Margam Road to Port Talbot (Revocation) 
and (30mph Speed Limits) - Order 2022, as indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The report outlines the proposed 30mph Speed Limit Traffic 
Regulation Orders which were formally advertised resulting in 
objections being received.  
 
 
 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



Background: 
 
The Welsh Government are proposing to implement a national roll out 
of a revision to the current default speed limit of 30 mph. 
The new default speed limit in lit areas across Wales will be 20 mph 
not 30 mph as currently.  This is planned to happen in September 
2023 when the new default limits become operational. 
 
Local Authorities are able to convert back from the default of 20 mph 
speed limit to the current 30 mph speed limit on agreed strategic 
roads by creating a traffic regulation order. 
 
The proposed 30mph speed limit traffic regulation order has been 
agreed with the Welsh Government and the local members as an 
exception to the general default 20 mph speed limit as indicated in 
Appendix A. 
 
The traffic regulation order is necessary to maintain the existing 
speed limit of 30 mph on sections of A48 Margam Road, A48 
Commercial Road, A48 Talbot Road, A48 Heilbronn Way, Dyffryn 
Road and Abbey Road within the borough after the Welsh 
Government has passed legislation to implement a 20mph default 
speed limit in urban areas nationally throughout Wales in the interest 
of road safety. 

The Council as Local Highway Authority considers that these roads 
are strategic routes with higher volumes of daily traffic compared to 
urban residential streets and as such does not meet the criteria or the 
nature of a road or roads with a speed limit of 20 mph. 

The Council considers that the existing 30 mph speed limits are 
appropriate speed limits in order to maintain a reasonable traffic flow 
on higher traffic volume strategic routes. 

Financial Impacts:  
 
The scheme is to be funded by the Welsh Government.  

Page 42



 
Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 
A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the 
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 
2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix B, has indicated 
that a more in-depth assessment is not required.  A summary is 
included below: - 
 
A full impact assessment is not required as the proposed traffic 
regulation orders will provide a safe environment for all highway 
users. 
 
Valleys Communities Impacts:  
 
There are ‘No Implications’ associated with this report. 
 
Workforce Impacts: 
 
There are ‘No Implications’ associated with this report. 
 
Legal Impacts: 
 
The proposals were advertised for a 21-day period between 26th 
September 2022 and 17th October 2022.  
 
Risk Management Impacts:  
 
There are no risk management impacts associated with this report. 
 
Consultation: 

This item has been subject to external consultation. 

Page 43



 

A consultation exercise was undertaken for a period of 21 days 
between 26th September 2022 and 17th October 2022. 

There were 500 letters and plans hand delivered to the properties on 
A48 Margam Road, A48 Commercial Road, A48 Talbot Road, A48 
Heilbronn Way, Dyffryn Road and Abbey Road detailing the 
proposals. Following a three-week consultation exercise, 1 support 
and 3 objections were received. 

A summary of the objections and support received are given below:- 

 

Support: - Any officer observations/ comments are illustrated in italics 
in response to the points raised. 
 

a) A resident supports the proposal as there is enough congestion 

as it is on the route, especially at peak times and diversions 

from the M4. When the Plaza re-opens that will attract more 

traffic.  

 

b) A resident doesn’t want traffic backing up onto Junction 40 of 

the motorway. The resident feels that drivers drive according to 

road conditions and when vehicles travel down Abbey Road to 

the traffic lights they will not do 20mph.  

 
Objection: - Any officer observations/ comments are illustrated in 
italics in response to the points raised. 
 

a) Residents are against this proposal due to the already 

excessive speeds along the route. 

 

b) Residents have stated that they regularly observe vehicles 

travelling up to 60 mph along this route. Speeding is the main 

cause of collisions along this road.  

 

Page 44



Whilst the council acknowledges that speeding may occur along 

this route, the enforcement of any speed limit is the 

responsibility of South Wales Police.  

 

c) A resident disagrees with the reasoning that lowering the speed 

limit is to maintain traffic flow as traffic will flow at whatever 

speed is in operation.  

 

The A48 is a major highway, however if a lower speed limit was 

in place then traffic could divert into the side streets to avoid 

any enforcement by South Wales Police creating rat running 

through narrow residential streets.  

 

d) A resident has stated that 20 mph is a lot safer and less 

polluting. 

 

e) A resident feels that the speed limit is being kept at 30mph to 

allow buses to be kept running on time. 

 

The Council notes that the speed limit is being kept at 30mph 

due to the nature and conditions of the existing A classified 

road and not to allow for the running time of buses.  

 

f) Residents feel that the installation of a speed camera or any 

such measure by the council would be a more appropriate 

solution to deter speeding vehicles and reduce accidents. 

The Council will continue to monitor the situation going forward 
and may consider additional mitigation measures if required. 

g) A resident feels that there is no traffic control to slow vehicles at 

all and they never seen either fixed or mobile speed detection 

on this stretch of road.  

 

Page 45



h) A resident is formally against reducing the speed to 20mph. 

The local members have been consulted on the feedback received 
and support that the objections be overruled with the scheme being 
implemented as advertised in Appendix A.  
 
Recommendations:  
 
Having had due regard to the integrated impact assessment it is 
recommended that the objections are overruled to the A48 Margam 
Road to Port Talbot (Revocation) and (30mph Speed Limits) - Order 
2022 (as detailed in Appendix A to the circulated report) and that the 
scheme is implemented as advertised.  
 
The objectors are to be informed of the decision accordingly. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision:  
 
The Orders are necessary to maintain the existing speed limit of 30 
mph on sections of A48 Margam Road, A48 Commercial Road, A48 
Talbot Road, A48 Heilbronn Way, Dyffryn Road and Abbey Road 
within the borough after the Welsh Government has passed 
legislation to implement a 20mph default speed limit in urban areas 
nationally throughout Wales in the interest of road safety. 

Implementation of Decision: 
 

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period.  
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix A – Plan – Proposed 30mph Speed Limit, A48 Port Talbot 
to Margam – Legal Plan.    
 
Appendix B – Integrated Impact Assessment. 

Page 46



 
List of Background Papers: 
 

None. 
 
Officer Contact: 
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk 
 
Mr Ryan L. Jones, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686771 
Email r.jones15@npt.gov.uk 
 

Page 47

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk
mailto:r.jones15@npt.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: A48 Margam Road to Port Talbot (Revocation) and (30mph Speed Limits) Order 
2022 

Service Area: Engineering and Transport  

Directorate: Environment and Regeneration  

 
2. Does the initiative affect:   
 

 Yes No 

Service users Y  

Staff Y  

Wider community Y  

Internal administrative process only  Y  

 
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age   N   L There is no negative impact as the speed limit will 
remain the same along the route thereby maintaining the 
location as a suitable route for all users of the locality.  

 

The route is generally wide with good footways and low 
traffic speeds.  

Disability   N   L 

Gender Reassignment  N   L 

Marriage/Civil Partnership  N   L 

Pregnancy/Maternity  N   L 

Race  N   L 

Religion/Belief  N   L 

Sex  N   L 

Sexual orientation  N   L 

P
age 51



2 

 

 

4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 
How might it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language  

Y    L There will be a positive impact as we welcome all 
correspondence in Welsh and English when dealing with the 
wider community. 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English  

Y    L There will be a positive impact because all permanent 
highway approved signage and road markings used in the 
traffic regulation orders are Bilingual ( Welsh / English ) with 
Welsh placed above English. 

 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity  

 N  
 L There is no negative impact as the road markings are located 

on the carriageway, therefore the scheme does not impact 
the existing Flora, Fauna or Biodiversity.  

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 
the wider environment, 
such as air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc.  

 N  

  

 

L 

There is no negative impact as the road markings are located 
away from the kerb allowing the carriageway and footway 
drainage to function as at present. 
The scheme is located within the existing road surface and 
as such there is no opportunity to provide additional drainage 
systems such as swales, soakaways etc. 

 

 

P
age 52



3 

 

 

 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people  

Y  
Within the Neath Port Talbot presently 59.6% of adults are obese or 
overweight (with 23.6% being obese) it is predicted that by 2025 the 
number will have risen to 66.5%.  A quarter of children in Wales are 
overweight or obese (including 12.4% that are obese) Wales has a higher 
percentage of adolescents self-reporting to be overweight or obese 
compared to England, Scotland and Republic of Ireland, with rates being 
generally higher in boys than girls.   
Only 48.4% of adults in Neath Port Talbot are meeting the physical activity 
guidelines compared to 53.1% in Wales. For most people, the easiest form 
of physical activity are those that can be built into everyday life such as 
walking and commuting by active travel. By enabling active travel, the 
proposal will contribute to improved health benefits for users whilst 
reducing carbon emissions from vehicles. 
The Welsh Governments Llwybr Nweydd Wales transport strategy sets out 
the 20 year ambition and focuses on delivering an accessible, sustainable 
transport system that is good for people, communities, the environment the 
economy and Welsh language and culture.  
The 5 year priorities call for a transport system and infrastructure that plays 
its part in reducing greenhouse gas emissions whilst increasing active 
travel and public transport use by providing safe, accessible, sustainable 
transport systems that people will want to use.  
The sustainable transport hierarchy places active travel at the forefront of 
transport and sets out how the strategy will encourage people to change 
their travel behaviour to use low-carbon sustainable transport, cycling and 
walking as the preferred transport modes. 

P
age 53



4 

 

The scheme will help to encourage and maintain Active Travel through 
maintaining the existing street scene environment, thereby benefiting the 
community. Furthermore, in September 2023 the Welsh Government 
National 20 mph speed limit default strategy may be implemented lowering 
the speed limit over a greater urban area of secondary estate roads within 
the locality reducing overall emissions and the promotion of Active Travel, 
walking and cycling. The main route by remaining at the existing 30 mph 
speed limit will help to maintain traffic flow, thereby helping to reduce the 
traffic using the estate roads which could become rat runs following the 
defaulting to a lower speed limit. 

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives  

Y  The scheme through maintaining the existing speed limit will maintain the 
existing street scene improving the community health through reduced air 
pollution and people walking to the local facilities, thereby contributing to 
other organisations goals on improving health for the population of Wales. 

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative  

Y  A statutory consultation exercise for the traffic regulation orders was 
undertaken with letters and plans delivered to the adjacent properties 
detailing the proposals. The traffic regulation orders were advertised in the 
South Wales Evening Post, on the Council’s web site and Notices posted 
on site. 

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions 

Y  The various sections within the Council such as Highway Engineering and 
the Legal section have worked together on this initiative.  

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse  

Y  In NPT 25.5% of homes do not have access to a car. Where car ownership 
levels are low, residents are more likely to be reliant on public transport 
and active travel for their day to day needs and to access key services and 
employment. Poor facilities can lead to difficulty in using active travel which 
can cause to social exclusion and isolation, which subsequently can lead to 
a range of health and social problems. 

P
age 54



5 

 

 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate): 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

After completing the assessment, it has been determined that this proposal does not require a full Impact Assessment (second 
stage). The 30mph speed limit traffic regulation order will have a positive impact on service users, have no adverse impact on 
people who share protected characteristics or on people’s ability to use the Welsh language.  

The 30mph speed limit traffic regulation order contributes to delivering the Council’s Corporate Improvement Plan by improving 
the wellbeing of people within the community by providing safe passage for all highway users. 

 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

 

 

 

Facilitating more journeys by Active Travel will reduce our consumption of 
natural resources and act to tackle the causes and consequences of 
congestion, climate change, traffic pollution and noise. 

Encouraging people to be more active by providing Active Travel routes will 
help people to be healthy, to achieve their potential. 

 Name Position Date 

Completed by Hasan I. Hasan Engineering Manager 07/12/2022 

Signed off by  D.W.Griffiths Head of Engineering & Transport 07/12/2022 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 
 
 

 
 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services  
Cabinet Board 

 
20th January 2023 

 

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport – D.W.Griffiths 
 
Matter for Decision 
 
Wards Affected: Resolven and Tonna  
 
TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES AT B4434 NEW ROAD, CLYNE - 
NOTICE 2022 
 
Purpose of the Report: 
 
To consider the objection received following the advertisement of the 
Traffic Calming Measures at B4434 New Road, Clyne - Notice 2022, 
as indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The report outlines the proposed Traffic Calming Measures which 
were formally advertised resulting in an objection being received.  
 
Background: 
 
The scheme was prioritised by local members following 
representations from residents regarding excessive vehicle speeds 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



along the route. These practices were highlighted by residents as a 
road safety concern.  
 
The proposed speed cushions are required in the interest of highway 
safety.  
 
The proposed scheme is indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Financial Impacts:  
 
The scheme is to be funded by the Capital Works Programme.  
 
Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 
A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the 
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 
2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix B, has indicated 
that a more in-depth assessment is not required.  A summary is 
included below: - 
 
A full impact assessment is not required as the proposed traffic 
calming measures will provide a safe environment for all highway 
users. 
 
Valleys Communities Impacts:  
 
There are ‘No Implications’ associated with this report. 
 
Workforce Impacts: 
 
There are ‘No Implications’ associated with this report. 
 

Page 58



Legal Impacts: 
 
The proposals were advertised for a 21-day period between 21st 
October 2022 and 11th November 2022.  
 
Risk Management Impacts:  
 
There are no risk management impacts associated with this report. 
 
Consultation: 

This item has been subject to external consultation. 

 
A consultation exercise was undertaken for a 21-day period between 
21st October 2022 and 11th November 2022.  

 

There were 25 letters and plans hand delivered to the properties on 
the B4434 New Road, Clyne detailing the proposals. Following a 
three-week consultation exercise, 1 statement of objection was 
received. 

 

A summary of the objection received is given below:- 
 
Objection: - Any officer observations/ comments are illustrated in 
italics in response to the points raised. 
 

a) The proposal falls well short of what the residents of Cyd 
Terrace have requested.  
 

b) The resident feels that the distance between the two proposed 
speed cushions is too great and leaves the 16 houses in the 
terrace at danger of speeding between these two speed 
cushions. The resident also feels that the original plan that 
residents were shown included 4 sets of speed cushions and 
would be better. Or even an additional set half way between 

Page 59



Number 1 Cyd Terrace and Number 16 Cyd Terrace. 
 
Highways officers have investigated both the possibility of 
placing speed cushions and speed ramps (plateaus) fronting 
numbers 1 to 17 New Road.  As a result of this, the existing 
carriageway width is too narrow with the inclusion of the parked 
cars to implement the cushions to the appropriate highway 
standard dimensions.  Subsequently, due to existing levels on 
site the implementation of a plateau could not be achieved as it 
would have an adverse effect on the highway drainage along 
the route. 
 

c) Four sets of speed cushions at a similar distance have recently 
been put in in a nearby area.  
 

d) The road past Cyd Terrace is like a death trap for the elderly, 
children and pets, as cars and motorbikes once they see the 
road is clear just speed passed in a reckless fashion.  
 

The council reviews each site individually and will consider the 

highway configuration, collision data, vehicle speeds, road 

widths, levels and drainage constraints when determining 

whether speed amelioration or mitigation measures should be 

implemented at a location.  

 

The local members have been consulted on the feedback received 
and support that the objection is overruled with the scheme being 
implemented as advertised in Appendix A.  
 
Recommendations:  
 
Having had due regard to the integrated impact assessment it is 
recommended that the objections are overruled to the Traffic Calming 
Measures at B4434 New Road, Clyne - Notice 2022 (as detailed in 

Page 60



Appendix A to the circulated report) and that the scheme is 
implemented as advertised.  
 
The objectors are to be informed of the decision accordingly. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision:  
 
The proposed speed cushions are required in the interest of highway 
safety.  
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period.  
 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix A – Plan – B4434 New Road, Clyne – Proposed Traffic 
Calming. 
 
Appendix B – Integrated Impact Assessment. 
 
 

List of Background Papers: 
 

None. 
 
Officer Contact: 
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk 
 
Mr Ryan L. Jones, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686771 
Email r.jones15@npt.gov.uk 

Page 61

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk
mailto:r.jones15@npt.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



B

4

4

3

4

 

N

e

w

 

R

o

a

d

Proposed Traffic

Calming Location

(Speed Cushions)

Replacing Traffic

Buildout

Remove Existing

Priority Buildout

A

R

A

F

Proposed Traffic

Calming Location

(Speed Cushions)

B

4

4

3

4

 

N

e

w

 

R

o

a

d

A

R

A

F

S

L

O

W

Bryn Golwg

B4434 NEW ROAD, CLYNE

PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING

V:\ts941 - RLJ\_Projects\Financial Year 2022 - 2023\Traffic Calming\C30330 - B4434 Clyne Traffic Calming\Drawings\NRC_TC_TRO1.dwg

A2

J
o

b
 
T

i
t
l
e

D
r
g

.
 
N

o
.

Date

Approved

Drawing No.

File No.

Drawn

Date

Scales

Financial Code No.

Checked

Date

Job Title

Ch

Client

Rev Details Dr Ap Date

1.  All dimensions are in millimetres unless

     otherwise stated.

NOTES

ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT

NICOLA PEARCE BSC (Hons), Dip TP, MRTPI

DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION

THE QUAYS, BRUNEL WAY

BAGLAN ENERGY PARK

NEATH SA11 2GG

THIS IS A C.A.D. PRODUCED DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.
Ordnance Survey Licence:  © Hawlfraint a hawilau cronfa ddata’r goron 2013. Rhid trwydded yr arolwg ordnans 100023392. © Crown Copyright and Database Right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100023392.

Status
PRELIM

RLJ

AUG'22

MCB

AUG'22

HIH

AUG'22

As Detailed

C30330_NRC_TC_TRO1

EXTENT OF TRAFFIC CALMING - SCALE 1:500 @ A2

Proposed Traffic

Calming Location

(Speed Cushions)

S

E

W

N

SITE LOCATION - SCALE 1:5000 @ A2

CLYNE

TONNA

S

E

W

N

P
age 63

AutoCAD SHX Text
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
BN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
BN

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
18.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Neath Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Twrch Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
37.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Clyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Abertwrch

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
1000E

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
BL

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
BN

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
BN

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
EB

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
IL

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
IL

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
IL

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
IL

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
IL

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
WT

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
1000E

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
33.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Ynys-Ne?dd Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
Spring

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
Spout

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
Afon Nedd / River Neath

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
MP 38.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
CC

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
Ty Camlas

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Lock

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
The Clogery

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
18.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Neath Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Nythfa

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Twrch Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
37.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Craig Ynysgollen

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Broad Haven

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
16.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
13.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
19.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Ynys-gollen

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
Rock and Fountain

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
13.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
MS

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
A465

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
A465

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Afon Nedd / River Neath

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
B4434

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
TONCLWYDA

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
Pen y Bank

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
Clyne

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
37.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
34.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
Bryn Golwg

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
Tyr-y-Dail

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
MAES PWLL

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
18.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
32.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
23.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
Hermon Chapel

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
26.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
Cartrefle

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
28.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
Heol Nant

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
24.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
33.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
MP 37.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
Clyne Halt

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
YNYS-YR-AFON

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
14.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
16.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
Plas y Bryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
31.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
32.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
29.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
B 4434

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
Level Crossing

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
Mineral Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
20.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
ETL

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
B 4242

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
Aqueduct

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Craig Ynysbwllog

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
TONCLWYDA



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: Traffic Calming Measures at B4434 New Road, Clyne – Notice 2022 

Service Area: Engineering and Transport  

Directorate: Environment and Regeneration  

 
2. Does the initiative affect:   
 

 Yes No 

Service users Y  

Staff Y  

Wider community Y  

Internal administrative process only  Y  

 
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age   N   L There is no negative impact as the proposed speed 
cushions help reduce vehicle speeds along the route 
thereby making the location safer for all users of the 
locality.  

Disability   N   L 

Gender Reassignment  N   L 

Marriage/Civil Partnership  N   L 

Pregnancy/Maternity  N   L 

Race  N   L 

Religion/Belief  N   L 

Sex  N   L 

Sexual orientation  N   L 

 

P
age 65



2 

 

4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 
How might it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language  

Y    L There will be a positive impact as we welcome all 
correspondence in Welsh and English when dealing with the 
wider community. 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English  

Y    L There will be a positive impact because all permanent 
highway approved signage and road markings used in the 
traffic regulation orders are Bilingual ( Welsh / English ) with 
Welsh placed above English. 

 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity  

 N  
 L There is no negative impact as the road markings are located 

on the carriageway, therefore the scheme does not impact 
the existing Flora, Fauna or Biodiversity.  

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 
the wider environment, 
such as air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc.  

 N  

  

 

L 

There is no negative impact as the road markings are located 
away from the kerb allowing the carriageway and footway 
drainage to function as at present. 
The scheme is located within the existing road surface and 
as such there is no opportunity to provide additional drainage 
systems such as swales, soakaways etc. 

 

 

 

P
age 66



3 

 

 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people  

Y  
Within the Neath Port Talbot presently 59.6% of adults are obese or 
overweight (with 23.6% being obese) it is predicted that by 2025 the 
number will have risen to 66.5%.  A quarter of children in Wales are 
overweight or obese (including 12.4% that are obese) Wales has a higher 
percentage of adolescents self-reporting to be overweight or obese 
compared to England, Scotland and Republic of Ireland, with rates being 
generally higher in boys than girls.   
Only 48.4% of adults in Neath Port Talbot are meeting the physical activity 
guidelines compared to 53.1% in Wales. For most people, the easiest form 
of physical activity are those that can be built into everyday life such as 
walking and commuting by active travel. By enabling active travel, the 
proposal will contribute to improved health benefits for users whilst 
reducing carbon emissions from vehicles. 
The Welsh Governments Llwybr Nweydd Wales transport strategy sets out 
the 20 year ambition and focuses on delivering an accessible, sustainable 
transport system that is good for people, communities, the environment the 
economy and Welsh language and culture.  
The 5 year priorities call for a transport system and infrastructure that plays 
its part in reducing greenhouse gas emissions whilst increasing active 
travel and public transport use by providing safe, accessible, sustainable 
transport systems that people will want to use.  
The sustainable transport hierarchy places active travel at the forefront of 
transport and sets out how the strategy will encourage people to change 
their travel behaviour to use low-carbon sustainable transport, cycling and 
walking as the preferred transport modes. 

The scheme will help encourage Active Travel through helping to enhance 
the street scene environment (footpath access) thereby benefiting the 
community. Furthermore, in September 2023 the Welsh Government 

P
age 67



4 

 

 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate): 

National 20 mph speed limit default strategy may be implemented lowering 
the speed limit over a greater area with the locality increasing the 
enhancement of reduced emissions and the promotion of Active Travel, 
walking and cycling. 

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives  

Y  The scheme through introducing traffic calming measures will help to 
improve the street scene improving the community health through reduced 
air pollution and people walking to the local facilities thereby contributing to 
other organisations goals on improving health for the population of Wales. 

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative  

Y  A statutory consultation exercise for the traffic calming measures was 
undertaken with letters and plans delivered to the adjacent properties 
detailing the proposals. The traffic calming measures were advertised in 
the South Wales Evening Post, on the Council’s web site and Notices 
posted on site. 

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions 

Y  The various sections within the Council such as Highway Engineering and 
the Legal section have worked together on this initiative.  

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse  

Y  In NPT 25.5% of homes do not have access to a car. Where car ownership 
levels are low, residents are more likely to be reliant on public transport 
and active travel for their day to day needs and to access key services and 
employment. Poor facilities can lead to difficulty in using active travel which 
can cause to social exclusion and isolation, which subsequently can lead to 
a range of health and social problems. 

Facilitating more journeys by Active Travel will reduce our consumption of 
natural resources and act to tackle the causes and consequences of 
congestion, climate change, traffic pollution and noise. 

Encouraging people to be more active by providing Active Travel routes will 
help people to be healthy, to achieve their potential. 

P
age 68



5 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

After completing the assessment, it has been determined that this proposal does not require a full Impact Assessment (second 
stage). The traffic calming measures will have a positive impact on service users, have no adverse impact on people who share 
protected characteristics or on people’s ability to use the Welsh language.  

The traffic calming measures will contribute to delivering the Council’s Corporate Improvement Plan by improving the wellbeing of 
people within the community by providing safe passage for all highway users. 

 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

 

 

 

 Name Position Date 

Completed by Hasan I. Hasan Engineering Manager 07/12/2022 

Signed off by  D.W.Griffiths Head of Engineering & Transport 07/12/2022 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 
 
 

 
 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ENVIRONMENT, REGENERATION AND STREETSCENE 
SERVICES CABINET BOARD 

 
20th January 2023 

 

Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport – D.W.Griffiths 
 
Matter for Decision 
 
Wards Affected: Neath North, Neath South and Neath East 
 
B4287 CIMLA ROAD, CIMLA, NEATH (30 MPH SPEED LIMIT) - 
ORDER 2022 

 
Purpose of the Report: 
 
To consider the comments and objections received following the 
advertisement of the B4287 Cimla Road, Cimla, Neath (30mph speed 
limit) - Order 2022, as indicated in Appendix A. 
 
Executive Summary: 
 
The report outlines the proposed 30mph Speed Limit Traffic 
Regulation Orders which were formally advertised resulting in 
objections being received.  
 
 
 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



Background: 
 
The Welsh Government are proposing to implement a national roll out 
of a revision to the current default speed limit of 30 mph. 
The new default speed limit in lit areas across Wales will be 20 mph 
not 30 mph as currently.  This is planned to happen in September 
2023 when the new default limits become operational. 
 
Local Authorities are able to convert back from the default of 20 mph 
speed limit to the current 30 mph speed limit on agreed strategic 
roads by creating a traffic regulation order. 
 
The proposed 30mph speed limit traffic regulation order has been 
agreed with the Welsh Government and the local members as an 
exception to the general default 20 mph speed limit as indicated in 
Appendix A. 
 
The traffic regulation order is necessary to maintain the existing 
speed limit of 30 mph on the B4287 Cimla Road, Cimla within the 
borough after the Welsh Government has passed legislation to 
implement a 20mph default speed limit in urban areas nationally 
throughout Wales in the interest of road safety. 

The Council as Local Highway Authority considers that these roads 
are strategic routes with higher volumes of daily traffic compared to 
urban residential streets and as such does not meet the criteria or the 
nature of a road or roads with a speed limit of 20 mph. 

The Council considers that the existing 30 mph speed limits are 
appropriate speed limits in order to maintain a reasonable traffic flow 
on higher traffic volume strategic routes. 

Financial Impacts:  
 
The scheme is to be funded by the Welsh Government.  
 
 
 

Page 72



Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 
A first stage impact assessment has been undertaken to assist the 
Council in discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 
2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the 
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the 
Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix B, has indicated 
that a more in-depth assessment is not required.  A summary is 
included below: - 
 
A full impact assessment is not required as the proposed traffic 
regulation orders will provide a safe environment for all highway 
users. 
 
Valleys Communities Impacts:  
 
There are ‘No Implications’ associated with this report. 
 
Workforce Impacts: 
 
There are ‘No Implications’ associated with this report. 
 
Legal Impacts: 
 
The proposals were advertised for a 21-day period between 23rd 
September 2022 and the 14th October 2022.  
 
Risk Management Impacts:  
 
There are no risk management impacts associated with this report. 
 
Consultation: 

This item has been subject to external consultation. 

Page 73



A consultation exercise was undertaken for a period of 21 days 
between 23rd September 2022 and 14th October 2022. 

There were 182 letters and plans hand delivered to the properties on 
the B4287 Cimla Road, Cimla detailing the proposals. Following a 
three-week consultation exercise, 11 objections were received. 

 

A summary of the objections received are given below:- 

 

Objection: - Any officer observations/ comments are illustrated in 
italics in response to the points raised. 
 

1) Residents are against this proposal due to the already 
excessive speeds along the route. 

If traffic is travelling in excess of the legal speed limit then this is a 
matter for the Police to consider because they have the statutory 
Powers of enforcement not the Council. 

2) Residents have stated that they have difficulty exiting their 
drives onto Cimla Road due to poor visibility from indiscriminate 
parking and the speed of traffic. 

3) Residents have requested a controlled crossing for the lower 
section of Cimla Road as it is almost impossible to cross the 
road safely due to the speed of traffic. 

The Council has agreed to investigate indiscriminate parking 
and the location and viability of a controlled crossing.  

4) Residents have stated that 20 mph is a lot safer and less 
polluting as this is a walking route for school children to 
numerous schools located just off Cimla Road. 

The Council will continue to monitor the situation going forward. 
 

Page 74



5) Residents can’t seem to understand the logic behind making 
Cimla Road 30mph as a strategic route yet Windsor Road in 
Neath will remain default 20mph. 

The Council considers that Windsor Road is more commercial and 
the properties including residential are closer to the carriageway plus 
there is greater footfall than Cimla Road. 
 

The local members have been consulted on the feedback received 
and support that the objections be overruled with the scheme being 
implemented as advertised in Appendix A.  
 
Recommendations:  
 
Having had due regard to the integrated impact assessment it is 
recommended that the objections are overruled to the B4287 Cimla 
Road, Cimla, Neath (30mph speed limit) - Order 2022 (as detailed in 
Appendix A to the circulated report) and that the scheme is 
implemented as advertised.  
 
The objectors are to be informed of the decision accordingly. 
 
Reasons for Proposed Decision:  
 
The Orders are necessary to maintain the existing speed limit of 30 
mph on sections of the B4287 Cimla Road, Cimla, Neath within the 
borough after the Welsh Government has passed legislation to 
implement a 20mph default speed limit in urban areas nationally 
throughout Wales in the interest of road safety. 

Implementation of Decision: 
 

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in 
period.  
 
 
 

Page 75



Appendices:  
 
Appendix A – Plan – B4287 Cimla Road, Neath – Proposed traffic 
regulation order. 
 
Appendix B – Integrated Impact Assessment. 
 
 

List of Background Papers: 
 

None. 
 
Officer Contact: 
 
Mr Martin Brumby, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686013 
Email m.brumby@npt.gov.uk 
 
Mr Jonathan Davies, Engineering & Transport 
Tel. No. 01639 686494 
Email j.davies11@npt.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 76

mailto:m.brumby@npt.gov.uk
mailto:j.davies11@npt.gov.uk


HEOL CIM
LA / C

IM
LA ROAD

H

E

O

L

 

E

A

S

T

L

A

N

D

 

/

 

E

A

S

T

L

A

N

D

 

R

O

A

D

H

E

O

L

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

/

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

R

O

A

D

H

E

O

L

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

/

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

R

O

A

D

B

4

2

8

7

B

4

2

8

7

B

4

2

8

7

C

U

T
 
L
I
N

E

C

U

T
 
L
I
N

E

6

HEOL CIM
LA / C

IM
LA ROAD

H
E

O
L

 C
IM

L
A

 / C
IM

L
A

 R
O

A
D

B4287

A

F

A

N

 

V

A

L

L

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

B

4

2

8

7

B

4

2

8

7

C

U

T
 
L
I
N

E

C

U

T
 
L
I
N

E

H

E

O

L

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

/

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

R

O

A

D

H

E

O

L

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

/

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

R

O

A

D

B

4

2

8

7

H

E

O

L

 
E

A

S

T

L

A

N

D

 
/
 
E

A

S

T

L

A

N

D

 
R

O

A

D

H

E

O

L

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

/

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

R

O

A

D

H

E

O

L

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

/

 

C

I

M

L

A

 

R

O

A

D

A

F

A

N

 

V

A

L

L

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

B

4

2

8

7

B

4

2

8

7

B

4

2

8

7

B

4

2

8

7

C

U

T

 

L

I

N

E

C

U

T

 

L

I

N

E

CIMLA

CASTELL NEDD / NEATH

CRYNALLT PRIMARY

SCHOOL

6

ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT

NICOLA PEARCE BSC (Hons), Dip TP, MRTPI

DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT AND REGENERATION

THE QUAYS, BRUNEL WAY

BAGLAN ENERGY PARK

NEATH SA11 2GG

A1

V:\ts646-JonDavies\Cimla road - 30mph scheme\Cimla construction_recover.dwg

Date

Approved

Drawing No.

File No.

Drawn

Date

Scales

Financial Code No.

Checked

Date

Job Title

Ch

Client

Rev Details Dr Ap Date

THIS IS A C.A.D. PRODUCED DRAWING AND SHOULD NOT BE AMENDED BY HAND.

J
o

b
 
T

i
t
l
e

D
r
g

.
 
N

o
.

NOTES

1. All dimensions are in millimetres

unless   otherwise stated.

Status PRELIM

Ordnance Survey Licence:  © Hawlfraint a hawilau cronfa ddata’r goron 2013. Rhid trwydded yr arolwg ordnans 100023392. © Crown Copyright and Database Right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100023392.

JJD

MAY'22

MCB

MAY'22

HIH

MAY'22

1:1250 @ A1

CIMLA-RD/30MPH/TRO1

PROPOSED 30MPH

SPEED LIMIT EXTENT

B4287 CIMLA ROAD, NEATH

 PROPOSED TRAFFIC REGULATION

ORDER.

APPENDIX A

LOCATION PLAN - EXTENT OF THE SPEED LIMIT.

NOT TO SCALE

P
age 77

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
Celtic Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
/ Cimla Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
HIGHBURY COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
24 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
Cwrt Cimla

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
33 to 36

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
Glendale

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
Brynheulog

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
The Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
Brynheulog

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
Hillcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
East

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
Lynhales

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
56.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
Coach House

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
36.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
RHODFA KENWAY / KENWAY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
CLOS CIMLA / CIMLA CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
HIGHFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
Kerris

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
Little Theatre

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
Maes-Y-Ffynnon

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
Rookwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
13a

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
ENA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
18.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
VICTORIA GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
12.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
12.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
GLYN-Y-COED ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
RHODFAR GNOLL / GNOLL AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
Uplands

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
WESTERNMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
TRENEWYDD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
19.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
UPLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
24.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
CRESWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
56.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
RHODFA KENWAY / KENWAY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
HEOL MOORLAND / MOORLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
CLOS CIMLA / CIMLA CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
HIGHFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
Kerris

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
BRYN NEDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
Clos Ty Ysgol

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
HEOL CAE RHYS DDU / CAE RHYS DDU ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
Tyn Yr Heol

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
Ley

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
Edgehill

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
101.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
NEDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
BRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
92.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
96.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
52a

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
CHESTNUT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
MYRTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
Cefn Miaren

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
Fire

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
Yr Hen Capel

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
CLOS YSBYTY

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
99.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
NIGHTINGALE PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
Church of St Peter

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
NIGHTINGALE PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
Ty Tan

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
89.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
and St Paul

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
92.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
BWLCH ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
BEACONS VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
108.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
Cimla Common

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
STRYD MAIR / MARY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
CLIFFORD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
STRYD HENRY NEWYDD / NEW HENRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
86a

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
13 to17

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
7 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
Coppermill House

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
7.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
PAYNE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
LOMBARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
9a

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
6.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
5.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
MILLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
SRTYD PENDRILL /

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
PENDRILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
22.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
St Catherine's

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
107

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
90

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
119

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
172

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
/ HEOL Y WAUN

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
/ HEOL Y WAUN

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
198

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
196

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
103

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
MP 208.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
1 to 10

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
PAK House

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
STRYD ETHEL / ETHEL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
STRYD CECIL / CECIL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
STRYD ALICE / ALICE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
STRYD BOWEN / BOWEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
Lle Emanuel /

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
Emanuel Place

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
5.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
MARSHFIELD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
LOMBARD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
5.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
5.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
45a

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
SRTYD PENDRILL / PENDRILL STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
Cryddan

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
92

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
Ael-Y-Bryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
36a

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
109a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
Melincryddan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
Community Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
TAYLOR'S ROW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
ST CATHERINES CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
14a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
EXCHANGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
11.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
8.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
13 to 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
DW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
9.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
BRITON FERRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
1 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
NMCC Family Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
FFORDD NELSON MANDELA / NELSON MANDELA WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
Stockhams Corner House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
STRYD FLORENCE / FLORENCE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
STRYD EVA / EVA STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
Porth Nedd /

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
HEOL WINDSOR /

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
1 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
Neath Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
WINDSOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
BROOKDALE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
7.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
147

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
6.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
157

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
5.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
139

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
131

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
STRYD Y BRENIN / KING STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
STRYD HENRY / HENRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
STRYD HENRY /

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
HENRY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
MARY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
3-4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
Frederick House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
14-15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
5 to 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
1-2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
1 to 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
Ty'r Pobydd / The Baker's House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
Millers

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
STRYD BROOKDALE / BROOKDALE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
STRYD WILMOT / WILMOT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
BOWEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
STRYD BOWEN /

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
/ HEOL QUAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
Bethel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
Elim

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
Neath Methodist Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
DAN Y CRAIG ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
Springfield Terrace

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
Edward Jarvis Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
7.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
25a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
QUAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
CRYDDAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
6.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
THOMAS'S COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
7.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
26.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
SOUTHGATE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
21b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
BRITON FERRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
WHITTINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
Tyndale

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
(Club)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
Celtic Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
/ Cimla Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
HIGHBURY COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
18 to 23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
14 to 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
Arnedd

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
24 to 32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
5 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
Cwrt Cimla

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
33 to 36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
Dingly Dell

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
9 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
Silwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
HILLSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
Glendale

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
HEOL LEWIS / LEWIS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
Little Haven

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
The Priory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
The Willows

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
25.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
Brynheulog

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
The Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
37 to 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
Brynheulog

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
36.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
Hillcroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
East

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
1 to 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
Little Laurels

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
41 to 44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
Lynhales

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
38.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
The Laurels

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
Ty Ni

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
56.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
58.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
Coach House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
35.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
36.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
95a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
25.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
31.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
45 to 53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
Green Acre

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
St Joseph's R C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
RHODFA KENWAY / KENWAY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
HEOL MOORLAND / MOORLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
HEOL TALBOT / TALBOT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
CLOS CIMLA / CIMLA CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
HIGHFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
HILLSIDE LANE / LON Y BRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
Kerris

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
Gospel Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
Caederwen House

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
Oakfield Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
65.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
38 to 46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
KINGDON-OWEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
BRYN AWEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
GROVES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
62.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
CAEDERWEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
71.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
BRYN NEDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
51.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
COOK REES AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
Tree Tops

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
65.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
Presbytery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
KINGDON-OWEN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
RC Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
98

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
56.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
2b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
St Joseph's

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
80.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
PEN Y BRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
Clos Ty Ysgol

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
HEOL CAE RHYS DDU / CAE RHYS DDU ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
1 to 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
Tyn Yr Heol

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
87

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
Ley

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
Edgehill

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
101.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
NEDD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
108.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
BRYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
71

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
92.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
106.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
110.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
93.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
Westernmoor

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
87.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
109.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
96.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
100.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
CCS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
D Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
Wood

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
Gnoll Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
Preswylfa

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
Gnoll Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
46.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
Gnoll

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
49.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
Overflow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
10 to 24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
16b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
7.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
7.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
Tanks

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
OSBORNE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
LLE REES / REES PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
STRYD RICHMOND / RICHMOND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
25-26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
The Mews

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
1 to 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
34 to 45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
HEOL Y RHEITHORDY / RECTORY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
May's Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
15b

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
9.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
118

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
10a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
ELIAS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
110

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
9.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
8.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
8.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
LONDON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
ARTHUR STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
DUDLEY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
8.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
HEOL WINDSOR / WINDSOR ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
Cwrt May /

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
Waterfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
170

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
RHODFA POPLARS / POPLARS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
RHODFA'R DDRAENEN WEN / HAWTHORN AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
RHODFA FASARN / SYCAMORE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
Waterfall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
Care Home

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
Hollins Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
School

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
Ty'n-y-gors

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
Nursery

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
CIMLA CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
125

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
CHESTNUT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
HOLLY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
174

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
123

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
52a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
Little Hollins

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
115

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
128

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
121

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
Preswylfa

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
57.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
ALDER ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
TREVALLEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
Cefn Saeson Dingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
132

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
57.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
Dingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
Preswylfa Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
CHESTNUT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
CIMLA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
CEFN-

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
109

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
156

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
SAESON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
57.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
MYRTLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
83

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
TREVALLEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
72

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
135

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
149

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
Fire

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
AFAN VALLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
Playground

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
Yr Hen Capel

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
176

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
Gas Gov

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
Church of St Peter

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
LIME

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
HOLLINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
Ty Tan

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
57

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
89.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
and St Paul

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
THE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
92.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
92.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
Cimla Common

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
90.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
CURTIS STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
JENKINS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
49.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
33.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
77b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
24.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
42.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
Eastland

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
86

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
47.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
Fernbank

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
85

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
RHODFA'R GNOLL / GNOLL DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
Gardens

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
2a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
War Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
Memorial

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
Little Theatre

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
Maes-Y-Ffynnon

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
Rookwood

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
RUGBY AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
17.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
ROOK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
FBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
WOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
24a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
22a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
18.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
14.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
FS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
Gnoll Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
42.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
Sinks

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
1 to 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
WOODSIDE AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
148

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
150

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
95

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
144

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
146

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
164

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
166

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
FW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
/ HEOL Y WAUN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
Bryneryr

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
108

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
152

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
Eaglesbush Valley

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
Cryddan Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
142

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
Eaglesbush Valley

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
MEADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
162

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
Arfryn

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
Pefki House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
PENTWYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
Siloh Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
HEOL DAN Y CRAIG /

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
FOUNDRY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
Rock Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
106

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
Hillcrest

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
Close

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
TY-SEGUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
The Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
25.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
15a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
BURROWS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
16a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
21.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
Weir

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
Cryddan Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
Uplands

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
WESTERNMOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
14.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
Sub

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
CIMLA CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
TRENEWYDD RISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
17.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
19.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
40.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
UPLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
24.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
12.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
RHODFA WELLFIELD / WELLFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
22.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
PH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
CLOS MAES Y FFYNNON / MAES Y FFYNNON CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
ESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
RHODFA WELLFIELD / WELLFIELD AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
/ LLYS PABI

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
HEOL EASTLAND / EASTLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
HEOL LEWIS / LEWIS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
35a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
Penny Brick

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
Parc Mount Pleasant

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
/ Mount Pleasant Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
HEOL WALLACE / WALLACE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
HEOL Y BRYN / BRYN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
ALFORD ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
BILTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
Bowling Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
GROVES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
MOUNT PLEASANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
50.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
50.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
9.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
105

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
BURNSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
33.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
37.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
12.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
HILLSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
GEOFFREY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
9.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
96

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
82

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
31.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
54

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
47.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
39.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
44.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
19.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
13.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
LLEWELLYN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
WELLFIELD SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
EASTLAND PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
28.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
EDWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
94

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
75

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
DALTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
9.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
84

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
GEORGE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
66

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
77

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
BOWDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
93

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
POPPY COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
59

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
45.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
68

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
23.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
48.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
89

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
Pendrill Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
Club

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
10.7m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
12.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
GREENWAY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
Drill Hall House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
67

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
1b

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
BRYN Y BROCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
GOLWG Y DRE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
Hillside (Secure Unit)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
Beaufort House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
Farm Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
67.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
Eastland Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
Preswylfa Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
Preswylfa

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
61

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
MIN Y COED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
Cefn Saeson Dingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
Path (um)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
49a

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
CASTLE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
Preswylfa Dingle

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
Brook

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
Preswylfa

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
Ford

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
C Tk

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
Issues

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
PINE GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
OAK GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
PINE GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
Rowland House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
Hillary House

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
44

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
PINE GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
1 to 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
64

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
94.8m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
ED Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
OAK GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
103.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
LIME

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
Cimla Community Centre

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
101.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
110.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
Drive

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
Woodland

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
GROVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
103.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
ASH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
97.2m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
NW

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
NE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
SE



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary: B4287 Cimla Road, Cimla, Neath (30mph speed limit) - Order 2022 

Service Area: Engineering and Transport  

Directorate: Environment and Regeneration  

 
2. Does the initiative affect:   
 

 Yes No 

Service users Y  

Staff Y  

Wider community Y  

Internal administrative process only  Y  

 
3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact? 

Age   N   L There is no negative impact as the speed limit will 
remain the same along the route, thereby maintaining 
the location as a suitable route for all users of the 
locality.  

 

The route is generally wide with good footways and low 
traffic speeds.  

Disability   N   L 

Gender Reassignment  N   L 

Marriage/Civil Partnership  N   L 

Pregnancy/Maternity  N   L 

Race  N   L 

Religion/Belief  N   L 

Sex  N   L 

Sexual orientation  N   L 

 

P
age 79



2 

 

4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes  No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 
How might it impact? 

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language  

Y    L There will be a positive impact as we welcome all 
correspondence in Welsh and English when dealing with the 
wider community. 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English  

Y    L There will be a positive impact because all permanent 
highway approved signage and road markings used in the 
traffic regulation orders are Bilingual ( Welsh / English ) with 
Welsh placed above English. 

 

 

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes  No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity  

 N  
 L There is no negative impact as the road markings are located 

on the carriageway, therefore the scheme does not impact 
the existing Flora, Fauna or Biodiversity.  

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 
the wider environment, 
such as air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc.  

 N  

  

 

L 

There is no negative impact as the road markings are located 
away from the kerb allowing the carriageway and footway 
drainage to function as at present. 
The scheme is located within the existing road surface and 
as such there is no opportunity to provide additional drainage 
systems such as swales, soakaways etc. 

 

 

 

P
age 80



3 

 

 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 Yes  No Details 

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people  

Y  
Within the Neath Port Talbot presently 59.6% of adults are obese or 
overweight (with 23.6% being obese) it is predicted that by 2025 the 
number will have risen to 66.5%.  A quarter of children in Wales are 
overweight or obese (including 12.4% that are obese) Wales has a higher 
percentage of adolescents self-reporting to be overweight or obese 
compared to England, Scotland and Republic of Ireland, with rates being 
generally higher in boys than girls.   
Only 48.4% of adults in Neath Port Talbot are meeting the physical activity 
guidelines compared to 53.1% in Wales. For most people, the easiest form 
of physical activity are those that can be built into everyday life such as 
walking and commuting by active travel. By enabling active travel, the 
proposal will contribute to improved health benefits for users whilst 
reducing carbon emissions from vehicles. 
The Welsh Governments Llwybr Nweydd Wales transport strategy sets out 
the 20 year ambition and focuses on delivering an accessible, sustainable 
transport system that is good for people, communities, the environment the 
economy and Welsh language and culture.  
The 5 year priorities call for a transport system and infrastructure that plays 
its part in reducing greenhouse gas emissions whilst increasing active 
travel and public transport use by providing safe, accessible, sustainable 
transport systems that people will want to use.  
The sustainable transport hierarchy places active travel at the forefront of 
transport and sets out how the strategy will encourage people to change 
their travel behaviour to use low-carbon sustainable transport, cycling and 
walking as the preferred transport modes. 

The scheme will help to encourage and maintain Active Travel through 
maintaining the existing street scene environment, thereby benefiting the 
community. Furthermore, in September 2023 the Welsh Government 

P
age 81



4 

 

National 20 mph speed limit default strategy may be implemented lowering 
the speed limit over a greater urban area of secondary estate roads within 
the locality reducing overall emissions and the promotion of Active Travel, 
walking and cycling. The main route by remaining at the existing 30 mph 
speed limit will help to maintain traffic flow, thereby helping to reduce the 
traffic using the estate roads which could become rat runs following the 
defaulting to a lower speed limit. 

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives  

Y  The scheme through maintaining the existing speed limit will maintain the 
existing street scene improving the community health through reduced air 
pollution and people walking to the local facilities, thereby contributing to 
other organisations goals on improving health for the population of Wales. 

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative  

Y  A statutory consultation exercise for the traffic regulation orders was 
undertaken with letters and plans delivered to the adjacent properties 
detailing the proposals. The traffic regulation orders were advertised in the 
South Wales Evening Post, on the Council’s web site and Notices posted 
on site. 

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions 

Y  The various sections within the Council such as Highway Engineering and 
the Legal section have worked together on this initiative.  

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse  

Y  In NPT 25.5% of homes do not have access to a car. Where car ownership 
levels are low, residents are more likely to be reliant on public transport 
and active travel for their day to day needs and to access key services and 
employment. Poor facilities can lead to difficulty in using active travel which 
can cause to social exclusion and isolation, which subsequently can lead to 
a range of health and social problems. 

Facilitating more journeys by Active Travel will reduce our consumption of 
natural resources and act to tackle the causes and consequences of 
congestion, climate change, traffic pollution and noise. 

Encouraging people to be more active by providing Active Travel routes will 
help people to be healthy, to achieve their potential. 

P
age 82



5 

 

 

7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate): 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

After completing the assessment, it has been determined that this proposal does not require a full Impact Assessment (second 
stage). The 30mph speed limit traffic regulation order will have a positive impact on service users, have no adverse impact on 
people who share protected characteristics or on people’s ability to use the Welsh language.  

The 30mph speed limit traffic regulation order contributes to delivering the Council’s Corporate Improvement Plan by improving 
the wellbeing of people within the community by providing safe passage for all highway users. 

 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

 

 

 

 Name Position Date 

Completed by Hasan I. Hasan Engineering Manager 15/12/2022 

Signed off by  D.W.Griffiths Head of Engineering & Transport 15/12/2022 

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 
 
 
 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services 
 Cabinet Board 

 
20th January 2023 

 
Report of the Head of Engineering & Transport  

(David W. Griffiths) 
 
Matter for Decision 
 
Wards Affected:  All   
 
List of Approved Contractors 
 
Purpose of the Report: 
 
To seek Members’ approval to amend the List of Approved Contractors.  
 
Executive Summary: 
 
To seek approval for a Contractor to be included on the List of Approved 
Contractors. 
 
Background: 
 
Members will be aware that on previous occasions, reports concerning the List 
of Approved Contractors have been presented to Cabinet Board.   
 
The process gives local companies an opportunity to provide goods and 
services to the Council.  
 
The full list of categories is set out in Appendix A for your information.  
 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 11



Financial Impacts: 
 
No implications. 
 
Integrated Impact Assessment: 
 
A first stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in 
discharging its legislative duties (under the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh 
Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  
 
The first stage assessment, attached at Appendix B, has indicated that a more 
in-depth assessment is not required.  A summary is included below:- 
 
The report is seeking approval to add a new Contractor.  
 
This does not affect any group of people and or impact the Welsh language, 
biodiversity or the five ways of working. 

 
Valleys Communities Impacts: 
 
No implications. 
 
Workforce Impacts: 
 
No implications. 
 
Legal Impacts: 
 
No implications. 
 
Risk Management Impacts: 
 
No implications.  
 
Consultation: 
 
There is no requirement for external consultation on this item. 

 

 

Page 86



Recommendations: 
 
Having had due regard to the Integrated Impact Assessment it is recommended 
that:-  
 
The List of Approved Contractors is amended as follows:- 
 
Company to be added to the List of Approved Contractors 
 
The following company has applied to be included on the list and has passed 
the required assessments:-  
 

Company  Category  
 

Rockall Safety Ltd (R042) 111 

 
Reasons for Proposed Decision: 
 
To keep the List of Approved Contractors up to date and as far as possible, 
ensure a competitive procurement process.  
 
These recommendations to be adopted for the purpose of supplying a List of 
Approved Contractors for invitation to tender within the relevant category.  
 
Implementation of Decision: 
 
The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call in period.  
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A - Categories for List of Approved Contractors 
Appendix B - First Stage IIA 
 
List of Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Officer Contact 
 
Hasan Hasan, Engineering Manager  
Tel. No: 01639 686463  

Page 87



Email: h.hasan@npt.gov.uk  
 
Amanda Phillips, Programme & Commissioning Manager 
Tel. No: 01639 686483 
Email: environment@npt.gov.uk  
 

  

Page 88

mailto:h.hasan@npt.gov.uk
mailto:environment@npt.gov.uk


Appendix A 
 
Categories for List of Approved Contractors 
 
General Services 
1. Signs 
2. Plant Hire 
3. Security 
4. Clinical Waste 
5. Pest Control 
6. Re-Cycling 
7. Waste Disposal (e.g. Car, Computers, Steel) 
8. Crowd Control 
9. Traffic Management 
10. Portable Buildings 
11. Scaffolding 
 
Building Construction / Maintenance 
12. Building Construction £50,000 - £200,000 
13. Building Construction £200,000 - £1m 
14. Building Construction over £1m 
15. Minor Building Works below £50,000 
16. Works of Adaptation below £5,000 
17. Re-Roofing 

a) Felt & Asphalt below £10,000 / above £10,000 
b) Tiles & Slate below £10,000 / above £10,000 
c) GRP 
d) High Performance Coverings 
e) Sheeting & Cladding 

18. Supply &Installation of Floor Finishes 
a) Flexible Sheet, Tiles, Carpets 
b) Jointless 
c) Rigid Tiles, Slabs, Mosaics 
d) Wood 

19. Plastering 
20. Painting & Decorating 
21. Supply & Installation of Windows/Doors (Windows to BS 7412,
 Doors to PAS 23/1, PAS 24/1 to BS 7950 Kitemark Scheme) 

a) PVCU (using Aluplast System) 
b) Timber 
c) Aluminium 

Page 89



d) Steel 
e) Roller Shutter 
f) Security Doors 
g) Automatic Doors 

22. Suspended Ceilings 
23. Welding / Fabrication below £5,000 
24. Welding / Fabrication above £5,000 
25. Stonework Repair / Restoration / Cleaning 
26. Glazing & Safety Filming 
27. Wall Tie Replacement 
28. External Wall Insulation 
29. Damp Proofing / Dry Rot / Woodworm Treatment 
30. Cavity Wall and / or Loft Insulation 
31. Asbestos Handling & Removal, Asbestos Surveys & Asbestos 
 Consultancy Services 
32. Window Blinds 
33. Shop Fitters – Specialist Joinery 
34. Refurbishment of Laboratories 
35. Clearance of Void properties 
36. Works to Listed Buildings 

 
Mechanical & Electrical Engineering 
37. Domestic (including Housing) Plumbing & Central Heating below £50,000 
38. Domestic (including Housing) Plumbing & Central Heating above £50,000 
39. Commercial Heating & Ventilating below £100,000 
40. Commercial Heating & Ventilating above £100,000 
41. Domestic (including Housing) Electrical Installation below £50,000 
42. Domestic (including Housing) Electrical Installation above £50,000 
43. Commercial Electrical Installations below £100,000 
44. Commercial Electrical Installations above £100,000 
45. Gas Boiler Maintenance 
46. Maintenance of Building Management Systems for Heating & Ventilation 
 
Mechanical & Electrical Specialist Services 
47. CCTV 
48. Intruder Alarms 
49. Fire Alarms 
50. Warden Call System 
51. Lifts 
52. Swimming Pool Plant Equipment 
53. Water Systems Cleaning & Chlorination 

Page 90



54. Ductwork System Cleaning & Sterilisation 
55. Domestic & Commercial Kitchen Equipment Maintenance 
56. Supply & Installation of Specialist Kitchen Equipment / Fittings 
57. Installation, Testing & Maintenance of Local Exhaust Ventilation (LEV) 
58. Water Systems – Risk Assessment 
59. Supply & Installation of Pipework & Ductwork Installation 
60. Supply, Installation and / or Servicing of Automatic Door Systems 
61. PA Systems / Sound Systems 
62. Stage Lighting 
63. Service / Repair of Kilns 
64. Supply, Installation & Servicing of Leisure Services Equipment 
65. Specialist Steelwork (stainless Steel & Fabricated Works) 
66. Lightening Conductors 
67. Fire Fighting Equipment including Hose Reels 
68. Smoke / Fire Detectors 
69. Stage Equipment including Curtains, Gantry, Special Effects etc. 
70. Computer / Telephone Cabling 

 
Civil Engineering 
71. Civil Engineering £0 – £25,000 
72. Civil Engineering £25,000 – £250,000 
73. Civil Engineering £250,000 – £1m 
74. Civil Engineering over £1m 
75. Land Reclamation 
76. Sewers & Drainage 
77. Hard & Soft Landscaping 
78. Ground Investigation 
79. Demolition 
80. Surfacing, Carriageway & Footways 
81. Surface Dressing 
82. Road Markings & Reflective Road Studs 
83. Carriageway Slurry Surfacing & Footways 
84. Fencing 
85. Gabion & Blockstone 
86. Steel Fabrication below £25,000 
87. Steel Fabrication above £25,000 
88. Bridge Works, New & Maintenance 

 
Civil Engineering Specialists 
89. Concrete Repairs 
90. Diving Inspections & Works within Water 

Page 91



91. Bridge Deck Expansion Joints 
92. Bridge Deck Water Proofing 
93. Soil Nailing 
94. Sewer Relining 
95. Sewer Surveys 
96. Safety Fencing 
97. Bridge Parapets (Manufacture & Installation) 
98. Access Plant for Inspection 
99. Bridge Parapet Painting 
100. Painting of Structural Steelwork 
101. Aboriculturalist 
102. Weed-spraying 
103. Weather Forecasting 
104. Playground Equipment 
105. Specialist Cleaning 
106. Synthetic Pitches and Sports Facilities 
107. Bus/Cycle Shelters 
108. Traffic Signals 
109. Street Lighting 
110. Street Furniture 
111. Specialist Contractor not listed above – please specify type of work  

 
 

Page 92



  

 
 
 
Appendix B 

 
Impact Assessment - First Stage  

 
1. Details of the initiative  
  

Initiative description and summary:  List of Approved Contractors – Approval to add new Contractor(s), add 
additional Category/ies for approved Contractor(s) and/or remove approved Contractor(s) 

Service Area:  Procurement  

Directorate:  All  

 
 
2. Does the initiative affect:   
 

 Yes No 

Service users  x  

Staff  x  

Wider community  x  

Internal administrative process only    

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 93



3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their:  
 

 Yes No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
Know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including 
evidence)/How might it impact? 

Age    x    There is no impact.  Applications to be included 
on the Approved List of Contractors are accepted 
from all construction companies who meet the 
criteria. 

Disability    x   

Gender Reassignment   x   

Marriage/Civil Partnership   x   

Pregnancy/Maternity   x   

Race   x   

Religion/Belief   x   

Sex   x   

Sexual orientation   x   

 

4. Does the initiative impact on: 

 

 Yes No None/ 

Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including 
evidence used) / How might it impact? 

People’s opportunities to 
use the Welsh language  

  

 

 

x  

   

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English  

  

 

 

x  

   

 

P
age 94



5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity: 

 Yes No None/ 
Negligible 

Don’t 
know 

Impact 
H/M/L 

Reasons for your decision (including 
evidence) /  
How might it impact? 

To maintain and enhance 
biodiversity  

  x  
  

N/A 

To promote the resilience 
of ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of the 
wider environment, such as 
air quality, flood alleviation, 
etc.  

  x 

  

N/A 

 

6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working): 

 Yes No Details 

Long term - how the 
initiative supports the long 
term well-being of people  

 
 

 
The addition of contractors onto the List of Approved Contractors will enable these 
companies to be procured in accordance with NPT’s Procurement Rules.  
Contractors who fail to meet the requirements of this List will be given the 
opportunity to meet NPT’s criteria.  If this is not met, approval will be sought from 
Members to remove these contractors.  

Integration -  how the 
initiative impacts upon our 
wellbeing objectives  

 
 

 
Approving additional contractors onto the List of Approved Contractors will enable 
NPT to procure works with these companies.  This will allow the companies to 
provide employment opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of wealth 
generated through securing decent work.   

P
age 95



 

 

 

  

The List of Approved Contractors gives local companies the opportunity to be 
contracted by NPT to undertake works.  

Involvement -  how 
people have been involved 
in developing the initiative  

 
 

 
The companies have been assessed to determine their suitability to be included 
on the List of Approved Contractors.  External financial checks have been 
undertaken.  Various departments have undertaken checks on the companies for 
Insurances, technical ability, Quality, Environmental and Health & Safety.  

Collaboration - how we 
have worked with other 
services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable 
solutions 

 
 

 
Several departments have been involved in checking that contractors are suitable 
to undertake works for the category/ies.  Any contractors who fail to comply with 
the ongoing checks for the List of Approved Contractors will be given the 
opportunity to meet NPT criteria.  If this is not met, approval will be sought from 
Members to remove these contractors.  The List of Approved Contractors is 
available for use by all departments in the Authority wishing to undertake works.  

Prevention -  how the 
initiative will prevent 
problems occurring or 
getting worse  

 
 

 
Contractors who fail to comply with the ongoing checks for the List of Approved 
Contractors will be given the opportunity to meet NPT criteria.  If this is not met, 
approval will be sought from Members to remove these contractors. 

P
age 96



7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate): 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required   

Reasons for this conclusion    

This First Stage Impact Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in discharging its legislative duties (under 
the Equality Act 2010, the Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.  
 
This First Stage Assessment has indicated that a more in-depth assessment is not required.  A summary is below:- 
 
The report is seeking approval to add new Contractor(s), add additional Category/ies for approved Contractor(s) and remove 
approved Contractor(s). 
 
This does not affect any group of people and/or impact the Welsh Language, Biodiversity or the Five Ways of Working. 
 

 

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required  x 

Reasons for this conclusion    

N/A 

 

 

 Name Position Date 

Completed by:- Amanda J. Phillips  Programme & Commissioning Manager 15/12/2022 

Signed off by:- David W. Griffiths Head of Engineering & Transport 15/12/2022 

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL 
 

Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services  
Cabinet Board 

 
20th January 2023 

 
Report of 

 
Head of Property & Regeneration - Simon Brennan 

 
Matter for Information 

Wards Affected: All Wards 

Audit Wales National Study – Net Zero Decarbonisation Baseline Review 

Purpose of Report 
1. To receive an action plan setting out the Council’s response to the 

recommendations identified by Audit Wales following their national study, 
Net Zero Decarbonisation Baseline Review in Wales.  
 

Executive Summary 

2. In July 2022, the Auditor General published Public Sector readiness for Net 
Zero Carbon by 2030, which looked at decarbonisation actions in 48 public 
bodies, including all councils. This report found uncertainty that the 
collective ambition for a net zero public sector by 2030 will be met.  
 
The report identified significant, common barriers to progress that public 
bodies must collectively address to meet the collective net zero ambition, 
identifying that while public bodies are demonstrating commitment to 
carbon reduction, they must now significantly ramp up their activities, 
increase collaboration and place decarbonisation at the heart of their day-
to-day operations and decisions.  
 
The report makes the following five calls for action from public bodies: 
 

 Strengthen leadership and demonstrate collective    
responsibility through effective collaboration; 

 Clarify strategic direction and increase pace of implementation; 

 Get to grips with the finances; 

 Understand skills gaps and increase capacity; and 

 Improve data quality and monitoring to support decision making 
 
 
 

Page 99

Agenda Item 12



 

 

 
2.1 Overall Report Findings 
The report found that the Council has a good understanding of the task it 
faces to achieve net zero by 2030, which is clearly articulated in its 
Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy, but the Strategy is not 
costed and does not identify the funding required to deliver all the activity 
within the Strategy. 
 
2.2 Audit Wales Recommendation 
In order to meet its net zero ambition, the Council needs to fully cost its 
action plan and ensure that it is aligned with its Medium Term Financial 
Plan. While costing its action plan, the Council needs to consider the 
balance between what is needed to achieve net zero by 2030 and what is 
achievable given available resources, time and funding. 
 
2.3 NPT Council Proposed Action 
The Council commissioned a net zero bridging report to identify and 
analyse the gaps between the Council’s Dare Strategy and Welsh 
Government’s net zero 2030 requirements. The bridging report was 
completed in December 2022.  
 
To address the recommendation issued by Audit Wales, the Council have 
been in discussion with the Carbon Trust to formulate a commission for 
producing a net zero carbon 2030 action plan for the Council’s operational 
service delivery emissions. This will be a fully  costed implementation action 
plan, enabling the Council to reach its net zero ambition. 
 
The aim is to produce an all-embracing ‘Net Zero Carbon 2030 Action Plan’ 
(with phased targets and periodic milestones) which will sit under and 
integrate with a refreshed and updated DARE Strategy, essentially the Net 
Zero Carbon 2030 Action Plan will be an addendum and delivery 
mechanism for the DARE strategy, the intended approach will consist of: 
 

•    Updated (DARE) Strategy (Authority Wide) – Planned 2023 
 
•   Net zero Carbon 2030 Action Plan (Operational Service Delivery 

Emissions) - Planned 2023 
 

It must be acknowledged that for the Council to effectively transition to net 
zero by 2030, it is going to take high levels of funding, resource, 
organisational change, structured training, application of new technologies 
and the need for a holistic approach with responsibility assigned across all 
directorates, departments and embraced by all staff across the 
organisational structure of the Council. 
 

Page 100



 

 

The Action Plan contained in Appendix 2 sets out the Council’s response 
to the above recommendations.  
 
The proposed actions also reflect and support the Council’s motion to 
approve the Welsh Government’s ‘Climate Emergency’ declaration. 
 

Financial Appraisal 

3. The Council has set aside DARE strategy funding, however the Council is 

unable to ascertain at this stage, what exactly the overall costs for the 

effective delivery of net zero will be. The net zero carbon 2030 action plan 

will help us to better understand the long and short terms costs to deliver 

net zero by 2030.  

To deliver net zero 2030, the Council will maximise external funding sources 
where possible and when available.  Although there will also be the need to 
utilise its own capital funds to fully enable the capacity to transition to net zero 
within the timescale required by Welsh Government.    

 

Integrated Impact Assessment 

4. There is no requirement to undertake an Integrated Impact Assessment 
on this report.  

 

Valleys Communities Impact 

5. There are no valley community impacts associated with this report. 
 

Workforce Impact 

6. At this moment the impacts on the Council’s workforce are unknown, 

similar to the cost impact the net zero carbon 2030 action plan will look to 

identify potential work force impacts.  

Legal Impact 

7. There are no legal impacts associated with this report. 

 Risk Management 

8. Audit Wales findings are a key input into the Council’s corporate 
governance arrangements and the areas identified for improvement work 
inform the Annual Governance Statement and the associated improvement 
action plan.  

 

Consultation 

9. There is no requirement for external consultation on this item.  
 

Page 101



 

 

Recommendations 

10. For Cabinet to note the actions contained within Appendix 2. 
 

Reason for Proposed Decision 

11.  This is a matter for information. Therefore, no decision is required. 
 

Implementation of Decision 

12. This is a matter for information. Therefore, no decision is required. 
 

Appendices 

13. Appendix 1 – Audit Wales – Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero 
Carbon by 2030: Evidence Report of the Auditor General for Wales 
(August 2022). Please access this appendix through the link below: 
 

https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/publications/Public_Sector_Re
adiness_for_Net_Zero_Carbon_by_2030_Evidence_Report_English.pdf  
 
 

14. Appendix 2 – Action Plan. 

 

List of Background Papers 

15. None 
 

Officer Contact 

Christopher Jones 

Energy Manager 

Email: c.r.jones1@npt.gov.uk 

 

Page 102

https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/publications/Public_Sector_Readiness_for_Net_Zero_Carbon_by_2030_Evidence_Report_English.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/publications/Public_Sector_Readiness_for_Net_Zero_Carbon_by_2030_Evidence_Report_English.pdf


APPENDIX 2 
 

Action Plan – Carbon Reduction Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero Carbon by 2030: (Oct 22) 
 

Ref Recommendations Council action planned in 
response to the 

recommendations issued 
by Audit Wales 

Target date 
for 

completion 
of action 

Monitoring 
arrangements 

Responsible 
officer 

R1 In order to meet its net zero ambition the Council 
needs to fully cost its action plan and ensure that it is 
aligned with its Medium-Term Financial Plan. 

The Council will 
commission a net zero 
Carbon 2030 Strategy 
Action Plan which will 
provide a costed 
implementation action plan 
that will identity the 
pathway and options for 
net zero solutions, enabling 
the Council to reach its net 
zero ambition across its 
operational service 
delivery. 

 

The net 
zero action 
plan will be 
completed 
within 
2023. 

Officers will 
duly monitor 
progress on a 
periodic basis 
in order to 
assess 
effectiveness 
and 
outcomes, 
and report 
back to 
Council. 

Christopher 
Jones 

 

 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 
 

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services Cabinet 
Board – Friday, 20 January 2023 

 
ACCESS TO MEETINGS/EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

 

Purpose: To consider whether the Public should be 
excluded from the following items of business. 
 

Item (s): 
 

Agenda item 15 - The Transfer of Land and 
Construction of a Commercial Unit at Burrows 
Yard - Update 
 

Recommendation(s): That the public be excluded from the meeting 
during consideration of the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it/they involve(s) 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
set out in the Paragraphs listed below of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) 
Order 2007 subject to the Public Interest Test 
(where appropriate) being applied. 
 

Relevant Paragraph(s): 
 

14 

 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
To enable Members to consider whether the public should be 
excluded from the meeting in relation to the item(s) listed above. 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 14



Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Wales) 
Order 2007, allows a Principal Council to pass a resolution excluding 
the public from a meeting during an item of business.  
 
Such a resolution is dependant on whether it is likely, in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings that if members of the public were present during that 
item there would be disclosure to them of exempt information, as 
defined in section 100I of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
2. Exclusion of the Public/Public Interest Test 
 
In order to comply with the above mentioned legislation, Members will 
be requested to exclude the public from the meeting during 
consideration of the item(s) of business identified in the 
recommendation(s) to the report on the grounds that it/they involve(s) 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as set out in the Exclusion 
Paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) (Wales) Order 2007. 
 
Information which falls within paragraphs 12 to 15, 17 and 18 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended is 
exempt information if and so long as in all the circumstances of the 
case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 
The specific Exclusion Paragraphs and the Public Interest Tests to be 
applied are listed in Appendix A. 
 
Where paragraph 16 of the Schedule 12A applies there is no public 
interest test.  Members are able to consider whether they wish to 
waive their legal privilege in the information, however, given that this 
may place the Council in a position of risk, it is not something that 
should be done as a matter of routine. 

Page 106



 
3. Financial Implications 
 
Not applicable 
 
4. Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
Not applicable 
 
5. Valleys Communities Impact 
 
Not applicable 
 
6. Workforce Impact 
 
Not applicable. 
 
7. Legal Implications 
 
The legislative provisions are set out in the report. 
 
Members must consider with regard to each item of business the 
following matters. 
 
(a)  Whether in relation to that item of business the information is 

capable of being exempt information, because it falls into one of 
the paragraphs set out in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as amended and reproduced in Appendix 
A to this report. 

 
 and either 
 
 
(b) If the information does fall within one or more of paragraphs 12 

to 15, 17 and 18 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended, the public interest test in maintaining the 

Page 107



exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information; or  

 
(c) if the information falls within the paragraph 16 of Schedule 12A 

of the Local Government Act 1972 in considering whether to 
exclude the public members are not required to apply the public 
interest test by must consider whether they wish to waive their 
privilege in relation to that item for any reason. 

 
8. Risk Management 
 
To allow Members to consider risk associated with exempt 
information. 
 
9. Recommendation(s) 
 
As detailed at the start of the report. 
 
 
10. Reason for Proposed Decision(s): 
 
To ensure that all items are considered in the appropriate manner. 
 
 
11. Implementation of Decision(s): 
 
The decision(s) will be implemented immediately. 
 
 
12. List of Background Papers: 
 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
13. Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – List of Exemptions  

Page 108



 
Appendix A 

 

NO Relevant Paragraphs in Schedule 12A 

12 Information relating to a particular individual 
 

13 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual 
 

14 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 
 

15 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated consultations or negotiations in connection 
with any labour relations matter arising between the 
authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or 
office holders under, the authority 
 

16 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 

 

17 Information which reveals that the authority proposes: 

 To give under any enactment a notice under or by 
virtue of which requirements are imposed on a 
person, or 

 To make an order or direction under any enactment. 

18 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in 
connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution 
of crime. 

 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 111

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	5 Forward Work Programme
	7 Proposed Modification Order for byway No.24 in the Community of Cilybebyll
	Appendix 1 - Impact Assessment
	Appendix 2 - Location PLan
	Appendix 3 - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
	Appendix 4 - The basis upon which a Modification Order may be made to delete a path
	Appendix 5 - History of the Compilation of the Definitive Map and Statement

	8 A48 Margam Road to Port Talbot (Revocation) and (30MPH Speed Limits) - Order 2022
	DWG 30mph A48 Port Talbot to Margam Appendix A
	DWG A48 P Talbot Margam -  IIA - Appendix B -01

	9 Traffic Calming Measures at B4434 New Road, Clyne - Notice 2022
	DWG NRC_TC_TRO1 - Proposed Traffic Calming Clyne Appendix A
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	DWG New Road Clyne TC -  IIA - Appendix B

	10 B4287 Cimla Road, Cimla, Neath (30 MPH Speed Limit) - Order 2022
	DWG CIMLA-RD-30MPH-TRO1-APPENDIX A
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	DWG Cimla Road, Neath  IIA - Appendix B -01

	11 List of Approved Contractors
	12 Audit Wales National Study - Net Zero Decarbonisation Baseline Review
	SB Appendix 2 - Action Plan Decarbonisation

	14 Access to Meetings - Exclusion of the Public
	15 The Transfer of Land and Construction of a Commercial Unit at Burrows Yard - Update (Exempt under Paragraph 14)

